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(gavel)... The Council’s Committee on Budget and Finance shall come
CHAIR HOKAMA:
to order. This is our meeting of the 16th of February 2016. Present is the Committee’s
Vice-Chair Mr. White.
.

.

.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. And Committee Members, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
Currently, the Chair will excuse Ms. Cochran, Mr. Guzman, and
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Victorino. Okay. We have some items... good morning. Ms. Cochran is present.
Great shoes. Okay. We shall take testimony, Members, from anyone wishing to
provide comments on those items agendized for today’s meeting. When your name is
called please come forward if you are in the Chambers, state your name, your
organization if you represent one, the item you are speaking on, and then you have
three minutes to share your comments. We will assist you with your time with a
lighting system on the podium. Green means speak, yellow means you have 30
seconds, and green [sic] means stop. And we do not allow an extra minute for
conclusions, not in this Committee. Okay. With that we shall ask for testimony and
this morning our first testifier is James Hirano.
_?

-
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• .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. HIRANO: Good morning, County Council.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.

MR. HIRANO: Good morning, Chairman. I’m testifying in support of Aloha House in its
effort to obtain funding from the Maui County’s Affordable Housing Fund to expand
transitional clean and sober housing for persons in recovery from substance abuse. In
Maui County, Aloha House has an outstanding reputation for the work they provide to
Throughout my career at the Maui
countless persons affected by addiction.
Community Correctional Center, I have witnessed the work that Aloha House does in
the Maui community. They provide hope to people with substance abuse addictions
by providing the treatment and skills needed to recapture their better selves. The
inmates at MCCC have directly benefited by utilizing Aloha House services of
treatment and available clean and sober housing. As many as 80 to 90 percent of the
inmates that I’ve worked with in my 20-plus career years at MCCC have been involved
with drugs and alcohol. Maui County is in great need of clean and sober housing to
Having a
continue the reintegration of inmates into the Maui community.
substance-abuse-free living environment is a critical aspect of helping people to
sustain long-term recovery from addiction. The need for this resource far exceeds
available supply and the population served have very limited financial resources.
Aloha House has developed a continuum of services that allows those in recovery to
continue receiving step-down levels of care over an extended period of time with staff
that are skilled and effective in assisting clients to achieve and sustain recovery.
Aloha House continues to be a collaborative partner to other Maui agencies in giving
individuals and families across Maui County the substance abuse services needed in
their times of hardship. In closing, I reiterate my support for Aloha House in this
continuous effort because of the proven record of effective service to those that are
struggling with addiction. Aloha House is committed to excellence in service and
This funding for much needed
genuinely cares about the Maui community.
transitional housing will make a positive difference in the success of Maui citizens
afflicted by addition. I hope that you’ll seriously consider their application for this
funding. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Hirano, I need to have you state for the record first your
name as well as if you are representing yourself in any official capacity to let us know.
I’m the Warden of the Maui Community
My name is James Hirano.
MR. HIRANO:
Correctional Center. I’m representing the Maui Community Correctional Center as
well as myself as an individual.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for stating that.
Mr. Hirano? Ms. Crivello?

-j
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BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here, Mr. Hirano,
and the work that you do. In regards to the Aloha House and, you know, they also
extend their services out to Molokai for drug treatment also
--

MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and support.
MRHIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: My question is in regards to transitional housing with the
Aloha House what’s your time. .your residential timeframe I guess for clients? Is it, do
How many beds do you have for residential
you have residential treatment?
how long do they actually I guess house if that’s
and
treatment? If you’re familiar or...
the correct word for their residential treatment?
.

MR. HIRANO: Well, if you’re talking about the core programming at MCCC or are you talking
about
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m sorry at the Aloha House.
MR. HIRANO: At the Aloha House. One of the things that in my experience has been is if I
can use an example
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. HIRANO: --the Malama Recovery Center. It was, jeez, back in the ‘90s or early 2000s
that we would have women that are inmates in the facility and working in conjunction
with Aloha House. As an example of course yeah they still do this that’s why but as
they would work with Aloha House and they would actually live in the transitional
living program in the Malama Recovery Center. And that went on I believe for
approximately 18 months and that was a treatment-based program where people
would also not only have their children with them either visiting or on a continual
basis and then participate in either a furlough, work furlough or education furlough
as they’re going through the treatment.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So the Aloha House this was part of their program, Malama
Recovery Center?
MR. HIRANO: That’s correct. Yes. That’s for females only.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Hirano.
MR. HIRANO: You’re welcome.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the gentleman? How has, Mr. Hirano, your
Department and the State supported you in similar efforts that you’re coming before
this Committee this morning?
MR. HIRANO: Most of.. .can I.. .I’ll answer it in a little bit of a roundabout way if you don’t
mind, most of the efforts that have come in transitioning people with recovery,
addictions, substance abuse addictions as well as drug addictions have come from our
Maui community. And throughout the years the Maui community has stepped up
with places like Aloha House has helped to supplement our reentry efforts of the
Department. The reentry efforts of our Department modernly are including things like
workforce development, domestic violence but they’re all in subcontracting out to
services that are already here in Maui. So my experience has been that the Maui
community is really the support of all the people that are reentering back into the
community. Although we are tasked, we meaning the State, is tasked with supposedly
doing this process, we cannot do it alone. And so throughout my years we’ve been
very fortunate that Maui has come to our door.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the bottom line is your Department and the State has not given you the
resources you need to do the job. Cause you’re telling me the Maui community, that
It’s either coming from the County
means that’s not coming from the State.
government or from companies and individuals within this County who feel to donate
to something they believe in and that to me is the State not doing its job. And I would
ask that you talk to your Department and the Legislature to give you the sufficient
resources that they need to provide your Department with to do your job. We can help
supplement but do not ask the County to do the State’s job in funding, that you will
not get support from people like me. Any other questions? Thank you so much for
your presence.
MR. HIRANO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Jud Cunningham?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee of
the Maui County Council, aloha and good morning. My name is Jud Cunningham
and as Chief Executive Officer I’m speaking on behalf of Aloha House. I’m going to do
my testimony and then, Ms. Crivello, I might be able to answer some of the questions
that you were posing. As you’ve already been informed, the Department of Housing
and Human Concerns has recommended that a grant in the amount of $450,000 be
awarded to Aloha House to be applied toward the purchase of an existing housing in
Central Maui for use as clean and sober living. The beneficiaries of this project will be
low-income single adults that are participating in or have recently completed intensive
substance abuse treatment and require additional support and case management to
Aloha House has
facilitate long-term recovery from alcohol or drug addiction.
we along with our
as
program
housing
of
in
this
kind
operating
extensive experience
partner agency Malama Family Recovery Center currently manages over 60 clean and
sober beds in five separate locations. As we have a steady stream of men and women
completing residential treatment or who are participating in the Drug Court Program,
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the waiting list for clean and sober support housing is continuous. The current
program is largely self-sustaining through program fees charged to the participants;
however, many individuals cannot even afford even the modest cost of sharing rental
housing. So by acquiring a property free and clear of any debt service Aloha House
will be better able to serve very low-income persons who would otherwise be homeless
or perhaps in other high-risk situations where the likelihood of relapse is much
greater. We have surveyed the current housing market and are confident that with
the additional $150,000 committed to this project by our board of directors and
fundraising, we will be able to purchase and if need be to renovate at least a
3-bedroom, 2-bath house of 1,600 or more square feet and which can house up to five
unrelated persons. We’re also hopeful as we have in the past that we might be able to
get a house and ohana so that we could even possibly serve up to nine or ten people
concurrently. This number may appear small but over time many individuals will be
assisted on their road to recovery due to turnover as the average length of stay is
expected to be six months, a transitional period while the client is assisted in finding
more permanent housing. This model of clean and sober housing is well established.
We have refined policies and procedures, house rules, et cetera, that prohibit the use
of alcohol or illegal drugs by residents. Case managers assigned to check in with
residents as frequently as needed and residents are required to be participating
actively in an appropriate level of treatment. Given the time Ill stop there and thank
you for this opportunity to address and ask for your support of this critically needed
resource for our community. This is very effective by the way.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Jud. Thank you, Mr. Cunningham, for your testimony. The
Chair will ask people like Mr. Cunningham if they want to stay we can bring them up
as resource during the time we bring the actual item up before the Committee. So at
this point though if you have any questions for clarification of testimony presented
please make yourself known at this time, please. Mr. Cunningham, no questions but
again yeah, you know, we would ask if you would consider staying when we do bring
up your item for a resource.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Well ask Mr. William Naweli Jr. if he would please
come forward and share his thoughts with us please.
MR. NAWELI: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. NAWELI: Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee of the
Maui County Council, aloha and good morning. My name is William Naweli Jr. As a
client who recently participated in Aloha House Clean and Sober Living Program, I am
testifying in favor of request for funding to expand the program by making more beds
available so others like myself can be helped in their path to recovery. For me, what
Aloha House has done for me was it helped me get structure in my release from
prison, having affordable housing, having a little structure as far as like house rules
-6-
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and curfew kept me on that path to recovery. Aloha House helped me out in many,
many ways than I can ever explain. After my six-month stay there I was able to afford
my own housing which I’m currently renting right now on my own. I work fulitime.
This is my way of giving back and saying thanks for your help, you know, my
addiction that I had with alcohol and drugs. For me I believe if it wasn’t for Aloha
House I probably would be back in prison due to the fact that sometimes when you get
released from prison and you go back to your old lifestyle and family you don’t have
that structure there to change your way of living. So Aloha House for me helped me in
many, many ways. And I just want to thank you for letting me come up and support
Aloha House at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well we want to thank you for making yourself present this morning and
coming to speak to us.
MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your testimony is very strong and we appreciate your heartfelt comments.
MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Naweli, thank you for being here. One question I want to ask you
because I find it to be a credit to your perseverance and as well as Aloha House’s
program. How did you get that housing after six months? Did you just had good luck
and you found it on your own or were there someone who helped assist you or another
agency? Because I find that your ability to find housing after six months is a great
step forward for people like yourself. So, I just wanted to know how we can make sure
we can continue that.
I don’t know if you know but rent out here on

MR. NAWELI: For one I was able to save.
Maui is kind of expensive.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes it is. Yes it is.

MR. NAWELI: I was able to save enough money to, you know, get my own place. It’s kind
of... I mean as far as being in recovery it gives you like some kind of sense of
accomplishment to be able to pay your own bills and afford rent. So I was able to save
because the.. .1 think it’s 250 a month for Aloha House they charge you for rent and I
was able to save. The staff, Ms. Maelynn that runs Aloha House in Wailuku went out
of her way to help me find housing. went out of her way to help me find housing and
just being able to have structure like I said like you have curfew and rules, you have
chores to do there. And eventually as you go along six months things get easier for
You get more time to look for
Your curfew gets lifted. .(inaudibte).
you.
employment. Don’t get me wrong it wasn’t easy in the beginning. I was struggling at
first because I didn’t have a dollar in my pocket. I didn’t have nowhere to go.
.

.

.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
-7-

.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 16, 2016

MR. NAWELI: So just the transition of day by day and people believing in you gave me the
courage to find housing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good for you.
MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re very happy for you. Congratulations

--

MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on a good job done.
MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for the gentleman? Having none, we thank you very much
for being here, Mr. Naweli Jr.
MR. NAWELI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.
MR. NAWELI: Have a great day.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. You too. Well go to our District Offices and ask, Ms. Lono,
anyone in Hana wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair, this is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office, and there’s no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair, this is Denise Fernandez on Lanai, and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Mcon, anyone on Molokai, please?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair, this is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, ladies. Anyone else in the Chamber who would like to give
testimony please make yourself known at this time, we shall provide you with that
opportunity. Having none, Members, with no objections, we shall close testimony for
today’s meeting.

COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM 38(40):

AMENDMENTS

TO

THE

FISCAL

YEAR

2016

BUDGET

(DEPARTMENT OF POLICE, HAWAIIAN COMMERCIAL &
COMPANY (HC&S) COMMUNITY INITIATIVE GRANT PROGRAM)

SUGAR

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay let’s move to the first item please, Members. May I direct you to
BF-38(40). This is an amendment to fiscal Year 2016 Budget. We’ll ask the
Department of Police if they would come and join us, please, regarding this specific
request. Yeah, please, please come, come join us. Lieutenant, and your counselor
please come join us. You can join us right by Mr. Baz. Thank you. Thank you for
being here. Okay, Members, this is under the specific subheading of the Department
of Police, Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company or HC&S as we know it,
And this morning besides the Police
Community Initiative Grant Program.
Department we also have our Budget Director Mr. Baz to give us some opening
comments.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, good morning, Members, Sandy Baz, Budget Director,
happy to see here you today. The purpose of the proposed bill is to add a new grant
under the Department of Police for a community grant given by Hawaii Commercial &
Sugar Company in the amount of $3,000. We’ve attached a letter from HC&S as well
as the request from the Department to my office so you can have more information.
And we have, I’m not sure of your title, Mr. Pladera, but Captain.
MR. PLADERA: Actually I’m a lieutenant.
MR. BAZ: Lieutenant, okay, Lieutenant Pladera here this morning, yeah, to answer any
questions the Committee might have as well. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Lieutenant Pladera, why don’t you give us some
comments and then we’ll ask your Supervising Counselor to give us her comments
also regarding this request.
MR. PLADERA: Thank you, Chair. I’d just like to read something really quick. Hopefully it
will give you an idea of what w&re trying to do with the grant from HC&S. Good
morning, Committee Chair Hokama and the Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee. My name is Lieutenant Jeraul Pladera. I’m presently the Commander of
the Juvenile Crime Prevention Division. I have been the commander for JCPD for
nine months. Since my assignment to the Division I have made it one of my goals to
effectively manage the budgetary resources of my command through working with my
administration to review and identify possible ways to help enhance our current
juvenile programs like P01, Positive Outreach Interventions and new programs like
KALO that use an innovative whole-family approach to dealing with at-risk juveniles
that are potentially or potentially could be caught up in the juvenile justice system.
-9-
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One of the ideas was to find funding for the establishment of a nonprofit that could
utilize to assist in funding of our juvenile programs in areas that are not covered in
our current Budget nor through established grants like funds that we receive from the
Office of Youth Services to pay for P01 and KALO. This new nonprofit’s goal I hope will
be in support of efforts to enhance the worthwhile programs to keep them running well
into the future. It also provides an important mechanism that once established can be
independent of the Maui Police Department so that there are no issues that could be
brought up that conflict with the Department’s policies and laws. A few months back,
I saw that HC&S was advertising applicants, applications for grants to organizations to
help fund programs that had a focus on helping children and family, the children and
family of our community. I’m very grateful to HC&S as they had the vision to provide
the funding for this idea. With their unfortunate exit from the sugar cane business
that in many ways has helped to build our County for generations, I hope that their
grant will be part of their legacy to help the children and family of our community.
The Maui Police Department’s criminal or Juvenile Crime Prevention Division stands
at the forefront of the Juvenile Justice System. We know that we are not the only
organization that wants to help children of our community and we also know that we
can’t do it alone. By forming this nonprofit we feel that we could... that this would be
an excellent vehicle for our local business community and private citizens to
contribute so they can be part of helping at-risk kids at this grassroots level. Thank
you for this opportunity to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lieutenant. Well ask Viki Roemmling, if I’m pronouncing it
correctly, if you have any comments you wish to share with us this morning on this
grant request please.
MS. ROEMMLING: Actually, no, I’m just here because I’m going.. .1 was able to accompany
the Lieutenant and help with any questions you might have regarding the program
we’d like to assist which is Project P01.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. First we recognize Mr. Guzman. Thank you for being
here, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, any questions? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I’m trying to understand, are
we.. .has a new nonprofit been created or you’re going to create one?
MR. PLADERA: While looking at the grant we’re trying to create one. Basically, HC&S was
willing to provide seed money for this endeavor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So it hasn’t been created and in the letter from them where
they’re notifying you of the award they’re saying we need your ID for your nonprofit.

-
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MR. PLADERA: Yeah, that is something that we’re trying to clarify in as such that I believe
they went and gave us the grant because they know that with the Maui Police
Department we have a program that’s already in place that’s been around for almost
20 years. I think they really wanted to, you know, just, you know, take the chance on
us in a sense that it’s... it might be a new nonprofit or at least going into that direction
but it’s not something that’s... that won’t have any direction and won’t have any goals
to help the kids.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So at what stage is the formation of this nonprofit?
MR. PLADERA: Basically it’s in the... once we get the funds the next step is to basically put it
together and, you know, establish the paperwork for the nonprofit and then go
through the next processes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So you haven’t done your IRS application yet?
MR. PLADERA: No, ma’am, we have not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
you.

Okay. Well I think that’s a very important fact, Chair. Thank

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Balsa. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Department. I think it’s
a very worthy goal here. But this was I guess granted about six months ago.
MR. PLADERA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
congratulations.

Right?

September of 2015 is when you got this letter of

MR. PLADERA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEM3ER COCHRAN: So, I’m just trying... and I’m hearing the line of questioning
from Ms. Balsa too and when I... seeming like they thought you had a nonprofit status
already in order to grant this to you and now you’re still in the process of trying to
create that. Is what I’m hearing?
MR. PLADERA: Well, as I said it wasn’t something that we didn’t disclose to them. We, in
the application we mentioned that it was to develop the nonprofit. They. there are
parts in the application that basically says that we are an organization that works with
kids but we’re not a nonprofit. We’re, you know, we’re a government entity. We’re not
allowed to do certain things, and basically again them taking a chance on us to help
build something that could be a legacy for them to assist in what we’re doing already
would be a great thing. And I’m hoping to have that ability to do that.
.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
thank you for that.

Okay.

Well thank you very much for your efforts.

Chair,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Baz, you have anything you want to add?
MR. BAZ: If I might, Mr. Chair? And those are very good questions, Member Cochran. So I
know a little bit about HC&S and A&B’s giving policy. They have given and continue
to give to governments as well as nonprofits. And I think the sentence in the letter
says the nonprofit program should also provide applicable tax ID but since they didn’t
give it to a nonprofit organization, they gave it to the County then our County ID is
well for them. They give to our Kaunoa Services quite a bit as well and it is an allowed
expenditure, an allowed gift from the foundations and the community, giving from the
corporation to government as well because the County is nonprofit. We’re not a
501(c) (3) entity but we are, is from the foundation standpoint considered to be eligible
for grants from them. So I have seen that in the past. The formation of a separate
nonprofit for Project P01 or these other activities is a different function from
necessarily from the acceptance of this grant. It may spur the creation of that and it,
you know, I haven’t evaluated if it’s a good idea to do or not but they are separate
functions. So the acceptance of this grant is, from the foundation is allowed as a
government entity without being a nonprofit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Baz, for that clarification. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Lieutenant, for being
here and bringing this to the Chair’s attention, and I certainly support it. Mr. Chair, I
have a question kind of for you or for the entity as, or the Committee as a whole. You
know it’s great that we got this $3,000 grant and I’m not sure if it’s a Charter
provision that we have to accept any and all grants but we’re spending way more than
$3,000 to accept this grant. And I was wondering if there was something we could do
to.. .is it a ordinance that we can up that limit or is the Committee even willing to
consider allowing some money to come in without having to
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can have those discussions

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --at another meeting. We can consider it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’d like to bring that up at another time. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure. This is just one way so that we can say we were informed and we
are aware since we make the final financial decisions. Ms. Crivello, any questions?
Mr. White?

-

12

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 16, 2016

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I think the crutch of the matter would
probably be more on the donor side in regards to having the nonprofit. I think that
they would probably want you to be nonprofit so that as the donor they could deduct
either, you know, 30 percent of the donation. But did you ask them whether they
could.. .1 know that you guys have organizations that are nonprofits. Some of the
bereavement or some of the.. .don’t you... are affiliated with some nonprofits?
MR. PLADERA: Yes, actually part of this direction that we took had to come out of some
ideas that we had with our Maui Police Department PAL Program.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There you go.
MR. PLADERA: They actually did form a nonprofit.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, right.
MR. PLADERA: And with that nonprofit arm, you know, right now it’s not a, something that
fails under the Department for funding so in itself we tried to make sure that this is
something that we could use too to augment what budgetary items and things that we
have on tab with us, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah I mean that could be a possibility if you could probably
negotiate it with HC&S that they could use the PAL Program, the nonprofit status.
And I’m just looking at the donor side because they’re looking probably for some
deduction on that part of it for tax purposes.
MR. PLADERA: Ill work with them.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And I don’t see the advantage of, you know, just as HC&S
donating money without having any other advantage to it, yeah.
MR. PLADERA: Yeah, I’m really grateful that they did see the vision and whether or not
that’s something, I can go ahead and work with them on that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I mean just to help them.. .their side of it on the tax. I have a
couple other questions, Chair. The SRO Officers, School Resource Officers, is that
program, are you fully staffed on each school
--

MR. PLADERA: Actually
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --or is it still or

I,,
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MR. PLADERA: That’s a good question. The School Resource Officers actually do fall under
my command. We’re currently not completely filled with all our positions. Ideally I
would love to have every SRO in all the schools that we can.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that within this $3,000 grant?
MR. PLADERA: Excuse me?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that part of this $3,000 grant?
MR. PLADERA: No. With the SROs and all the personnel that we have they all take part of
the PCI Program where they’re helping with the kids, and the more people that we
have in the... or more personnel the more we can have personnel in the program just
helping out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. PLADERA: Right now we
CHAIR HOKAMA: But well just stay to this $3,000 grant right now.
MR. PLADERA: Yes, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
within the schools?

Yeah.

So the 3,000 would be used to develop programs

MR. PLADERA: Well, basically it would be used to develop the nonprofit so that
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, just purely setting it up.
MR. PLADERA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. PLADERA: Yes, that’s all it is for.
COUNCILMEM3ER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
Any questions, Mr. Carroll?

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
questions, Members? Ms. Balsa?

Any other

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I don’t want to give anybody
the idea that I’m not in support of programs that help our kids and stay out of trouble
‘cause that’s really, really important. Either you get them now or you’ll get them later
in your professional capacity which I know you don’t want and none of us want. But I
wear another hat and that hat of course is a lot of experience in the nonprofit world
and I’m just wondering, you know, we’ve had all these meetings, we’ve had all these
-
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seminars, we’ve sat around for hours trying to figure out how to better fund and use
the money that is set aside for human services because that demand gets bigger and
bigger and bigger. And one of the ideas that always comes up is consolidation. And
every time I hear somebody wants to start another nonprofit I get a little nervous
because what it means is another administration, another office and another person
coming here for grants. So I just want to ask was there any thought about maybe
partnering with an existing youth program?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lieutenant?
MR. PLADERA: Yes, actually we do have connections with like Friends of the Children’s
Justice Center who is actually a nonprofit that’s helped us with some of our other
programs to fund things that aren’t covered under our grants. And but again like you
said there’s so many different nonprofits. What are their goals, what are the directions
that they would like to take, and are we taking from them beyond what we would like
to at least hope would be our goals to help the kids. So as such I’d like to say that to
form a nonprofit for us would be ideal in a sense that they would know and we would
be able to let them know what we actually need and having people on the board that
have that same direction would be something positive.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Lieutenant. I have heard that over and
over and I’ve used it myself. Our goals are unique and we have a separate purpose,
but what I’m thinking about, Chair, is what we’re dealing with with costs. And you
can have an umbrella organization with a whole bunch of programs underneath it
that, you know, you don’t have to create the nonprofit, create the executive director,
the office, and the accounting, and all that. So it’s just something to think about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know everybody wants to start a nonprofit but then we deal
with the result of that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Absolutely, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, and please don’t get me wrong. It’s just
that I think in the interest of being able to provide the most service with the little bit of
money we got to begin to get real. Thank you.

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for your comments and we’ll ask the Lieutenant that he
might want to touch base with the Maui Nonprofit Directors Association and see if
they have some advice or comments they can share with the Lieutenant on how to
approach it. One thing I will say though, Lieutenant, is please make sure you folks
know your financial and fiscal responsibilities to a nonprofit. If you’re small I am very
discouraging of any nonprofit coming back to the County asking for auditing monies.
If you cannot afford auditing monies, you pretty much too small for me to come and
Any further questions,
So take those things into consideration, please.
exist.
Members? Mr. Baz?
-
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MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to make one final comment. I haven’t
discussed with the Lieutenant his desires to start a nonprofit and if it was created
because of the need to go after additional revenues. But under Section 170(c)(1) of the
Internal Revenue Code, charitable contributions to governmental units are tax
deductible when they’re made for public purposes. So there’s no need for us to start a
nonprofit to accept these monies and it would... could just continue in existence the
way it has been operating their Project P01 and now the Project KALO. So, I’ll have
further discussions with the Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions, Members? If not, the Chair is
open to a motion to send to Council a recommendation to pass A Bill for an Ordinance
Amending the fiscal Year 2016 Budget for the County of Maui as it Pertains to
Schedule of Grants by Departments and
Appendix A, Part 1, Grant Revenue
Programs, Department of Police (Hawaiian Commercial & Sugar Company (HC&S)
Community Initiative Grant Program to pass first reading and be ordered to print.
-

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch.
Members, further discussion on the motion before you? Having none, all in favor of
the motion, please say “aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
Opposed say “no.”
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Victorino.
VOTE:

Motion passes with eight “ayes,” one excused,

AYES:

Vice-Chair
White,
and
Hokama,
Chair
Cochran,
Couch,
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll,
Crivello, and Guzman.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
Councilmember Victorino.

EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Lieutenant, Ms. Roemmling, thank you very much for your presence. We
appreciate your assistance this morning.

ITEM 38(38):

THE

AMENDMENTS TO

FISCAL

YEAR

2016

BUDGET

(DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBLIC SAFETY (WEIS DRAFT
COMMANDER MOBILE FIRE PUMP TESTING UNIT AND PUMPER TRUCK
FOR PUKOO FIRE STATION)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well ask the Chief to come forward. We will bring up 38(38), 38(38)
is under the subheading of Department of fire and Public Safety. It’s a Weis Draft
Commander Mobile Fire Pump Testing Unit and pumper truck for Pukoo. Well have
the Chief to come forward and give us his comments regarding the item. Good
morning, Chief. Well, first well let Mr. Baz give us his opening comments. Sorry,
Chief.
MR. MURRAY: No problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ill let Mr. Baz give us any appropriate opening comments on this item.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So the request before you this morning is to amend the
Fiscal Year ‘16 Budget for the Department of Fire and Public Safety under their
Operations Program Category C for equipment. And this is to fund a Weis Draft
Commander. For those of you who don’t remember that discussion in Budget it is
basically a pump tester that tests the pumps of the Fire Department’s vehicles. So the
bids went out. The Council funded $100,000 during the Budget process. We had
requested 120,000. The bids came out at 119,270 and so that’s what the Department
is requesting now is the additional $19,270 and we have our Fire Chief here to explain
and answer any questions if you might have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chief, if you would share us your comments, please.

MR. MURRAY: Aloha and good morning, Budget Chair and Committee Members. This
project helps us test our fire pumps, which is required for us to do on an annual
basis. This allows the safety process of high pressure water testing. And it is.. .we’re
hoping to get it to the outer islands as well ‘cause it has effects.. .it affects those
pumpers as well. If you look at the price that we had for the quote, initially we
requested $125,000, the bid came back at just under $120,000 and that is because
we eliminated the training portion of that as well as a spare tire and other equipment,
and that brought it down to that price that we have before you. And were able to
eliminate the training because we had one individual that... actually two individuals
that were trained but we wanted to upgrade our whole mechanic staff to be able to
provide the training for them so that they were able to utilize that machine properly.
But we have two people that are trained now and we’re going to move forward with
that to cut back on some costs. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chief. So, Chief, this is.. .you plan to take this to all of the
stations throughout the County then, this
17
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, some of the apparatus, the pumpers will come into Kahului and in some
cases we’ll be driving that trailer out to them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, Chief, this is only for the pumpers, right? This doesn’t test
hydrant pressures or anything else of the system. It’s just for the pumper.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, the actual fire truck and its components of the pump need to be
certified and tested and on an annual basis.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So this is what it’s for and it does it in a safe manner.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And it doesn’t waste water. And how
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we test anybody else’s equipment like State of Hawaii airport’s
equipment or anyone else?
MR. MURRAY: No, they have their own mandates for their
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it’s just for our needs then, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White, questions for Chief?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think we had good discussions during Budget

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, I remember that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --regarding this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Questions, sir? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. We currently have one though, correct,
that you barge over to the other islands?
-
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MR. MURRAY: No we don’t.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess we’ve just been talking about this for a long time. I
forgot it.
MR. MURRAY: We do not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We talked about it in Budget.
MR. MURRAY: We have a tank that we built in Kahului Station in 1991 that we use to
recirculate the pumps. We do most of our tests there but it’s highly dangerous now
and it’s not as accurate as it could be. And on the off island we utilize a makeshift
catchment system which is very dangerous and we use a dump truck from Public
Works to recirculate ‘cause it has to actually pump the GPM, the gallons per minute,
for a set amount of time in order to be certified. So, we, you know, made it happen.
It’s not the proper way of getting it done and we’re just trying to become more safe and
accurate in our process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. And in question by the Chair in regards to
the State, do they currently have such equipment?
MR. MURRAY: No, they do not. If they did we’d probably try to borrow it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. That’s what I was going to say if they did borrow.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Share. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Cochran asked the question I was
going to ask if the State guys had one too. We can rent it to them, right, when they
want to borrow ours?
MR. MURRAY: Well we haven’t come to that yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let the Chief take care of equipment first.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So
MR. MURRAY: And I’m not sure if it’s applicable to their
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pumpers, yeah.
-
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MR. MURRAY: --aircraft pumps because sometimes they pump in excess of 2,000 gallons
which is slightly different than what we do.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
right?

Okay.

So, in the Budget last year you guys put in 125,000,

MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that right? And I don’t remember in our discussions why it
went down to 100,000. 1 guess, Mr. Chair, that was
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ‘Cause it sounds like they’re pretty accurate on their estimates.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m very pleased with their numbers right now but some departments we
have some concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we’ll be looking at those, not counting this one, but well be looking at
their specs ‘cause I don’t need a fully chromed vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I agree. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If there’s no other questions for the Chief. I think the Chief did a
great job ‘cause I support the Chiefs request. So, Members, the Chair is open to a
motion to recommend to Council passage on first reading, be ordered to print, number
one, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Fiscal Year 2016--we got to learn how for
change this titles--for the County of Maui as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues;
Department of Fire and Public Safety, Administration/Maintenance Program; Total
Operating Appropriations; and Total Appropriations (Operating and Capital
Improvement Projects). And also to allow Staff to make nonsubstantive revisions.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch. Members, any
further discussion on the motion? Hearing none, all in favor of the motion, please say
“aye.”
-
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say “no.” Motion passes with eight “ayes,” one excused.
AYES:

White,
and
Vice-Chair
Hokama,
Chair
Cochran,
Couch,
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll,
Criveilo, and Guzman.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

Councilmember Victorino.

EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. We are going to take a short five-minute recess,
Members, or you need ten? I’m going to just call.. .for this is the only recess you’re
going to get and then we’re going to pound right through.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ten then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll come back at 10 o’clock,

.

ITEM 38(39):

.

.(gavet)...

9:48 a.m.
10:00 a.m.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:
CHAIR HOKAMA:
order.

..

.

(gavel).

..

We shall bring the Budget and Finance Committee back to

AMENDMENTS

TO

THE

FISCAL

YEAR

2016

BUDGET

(DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE, ACCOUNTS PROGRAM)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you now to Bf-38(39). This is an amendment to the Fiscal
Year 2016 Budget, subheading of the Department of Finance, Accounts Program. We
have a correspondence dated February 5th, We have a bill for an ordinance from the
Finance Department and so Ill ask first Mr. Baz if he has any open comments and
then we’ll ask Director Agsalog for his comments.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The amendment before you is related to the Accounts
Division of the Department of Finance. The request is for a total of $85,000, $20,000
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to cover anticipated overtime staff that they’re going to be incurring over the next few
months to upgrade the payroll system, and $65,000 because they have a operational
shortfall in their program this year. We have provided in our transmittal also a letter
dated January 21st from Director Agsalog with more details about the individual items
and the request itself. And we’re happy to answer any questions that the Committee
might have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Mr. Agsalog, any comments, sir?
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. But first of all before
I go on on this I want to thank the Budget Office for doing this very expeditious as well
as your Office, Mr. Chair. You have put this in your agenda for discussion and if
there’s any question that I can answer I’ll be here until we fully discuss it. But
essentially, Mr. Chair, as the Budget Director emphasized earlier, 20,000 will be for
the A Account for.. .to work on the payroll system that we have and 65,000, the 65,000
is on our B Account, Mr. Chair, and we need this... 30,000 of this is for the ACA
compliance. We have originally thought of including this on the ADP, Mr. Chair,
unfortunately ADP wanted to do everything instead of parceling it out, the
consultation as far as the compliance of the ACA, the Affordable Care Act, the Obama
Care Act. So we weren’t able to work with them to do that so we have contracted
Sovos Compliance. This particular one, Mr. Chair, if you need me to explain it a little
bit later on or if you have any questions. This is dealing with the 1095-C that we have
to report to the employees. The 109 5-3 coming from our providers of health insurance
but the 1095-C you should.. .we should be getting them at the end of March. We were
able to get an extension. This is an IRS requirement, 1095-C, Mr. Chair, is a IRS form
that in compliance with the Obama Care or ACA. This particular one will be an
ongoing request every year, Mr. Chair, for this so that we are in compliance with the
ACA. The ACA has much restrictions, both the affordability for the low threshold as
well as the Cadillac threshold. So this particular one is very, very important for us so
that we can comply with the Internal Revenue Service requirement. The 35,000,
Mr. Chair, is a request that I have discussed with you in my meeting with you, it
regards to the... I think we were successful enough to get our request for expansion
And when we removed the
last proposed year, last Budget cycle deliberation.
expansion I think we weren’t successful enough to retain the amount of funding that
we supposed to have for ADP so this is still an ADP requirement, Mr. Chair. So, I’m
here requesting it back so that well be able to pay that contract with the payroll
system. I will be here to answer any more questions that you might have, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Members, what well do is well split this in two.
Well start off with the 20,000 request first which is the premium pay and then we,
Ill.. .then well move into the 65,000 request from the Director. So, Mr. White,
questions on the first part, the 20,000?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Could you share with us the need for the BPR which is noted in your
letter? The 20,000 of the 3 Account money will be used for a BPR.

-

22

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

MR. AGSALOG: That’s for the overtime and we have got a free upgrade from the payroll
system because we have extended our payroll until 2018. We have looked at looking
for other providers for our payroll system but to get a system in it takes some time. So
we decided to do the upgrade without cost but in the implementation of that we will be
able to.. .we will incur a lot of overtime to implement it although it’s a free upgrade.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe Member White was asking about the B Account
request for 20,000 for a Business Process Review.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: Okay, I think, Mr. Chair, was going to bring the A Account items first

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I’m sorry.
MR. BAZ: --and then discuss the B Account.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s fine. Go ahead. I don’t have any questions on the A Account.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman? Mr. Carroll? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair, but sorry for my tardiness back from
break. I was just looking at the previous item and the pumper truck on the agenda.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. No, we
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It’s on the agenda but we’re not
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we’re not taking action on that

--

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --discussing that today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --at this time. The Chief and I are going to have to work on something
regarding that funding request.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so the Chief and I will be meeting shortly and then we1l bring that
back up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Sorry, Chair
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I veered away but I thought we were coming back to finish
that part off.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was a clarification you were asking that’s all.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. And no questions at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Agsalog, you said these were an
annual, going to be an annual request for the overtime?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
MR. AGSALOG: The one that I told you the annual request would be the Sovos Compliance
which is the 30,000 additional professional services.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. I got that.
MR. AGSALOO: But let me clarify about the overtime. In the overtime period, Mr. Chair, the
premium, we have consistently upward of 60,000 a year on our premium pay that
includes TA, temporary transfer, temporary assignment as well as the overtime. So, in
our proposed 2017, Mr. Chair, that will be included to be the same as the actuals that
we have done in previous years. So that’s going to be the request especially now that
we have the A Account and the B Account is more strict for us to adhere to that
particular requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So this amendment is one time because of the A/B
issue and that we had cut down a little bit on your premium pay?
MR. AGSALOG: Mr. Chair, in the proposed Budget there is a request of right around that
amount for our premium pay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. AGSALOG: Okay. So in the proposed that we going... that we send to the Budget Office
for their review and approval and we can show the actuals that we have done in the
past with the same amount of people that we have. In Accounts it will show that we
need what I’m requesting at the moment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?

-
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so to address part of your concern, Mr. Couch, the Chair and
Director Agsalog will be sitting down because I have some concerns of this overtime
pay. We do certain things annually. We know when the CAFR is going to come up.
We know when certain things will come up because it’s either by Code or by regular
process, especially regarding real property requirements. And so the... I’m going to talk
with the Director and see how we can approach this in a better way either by changing
personnel or something but I’m going to talk to the Director, see how we can deal with
this request. Because certain things again like I said that we do annually every year
the same time we should be prepared, we should be able to schedule accordingly. So
I’ll be working with the Director to see if we can come up with some considerations for
the upcoming Budget. But nonetheless, for this component I’m going to support his
$20,000 request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Anything on the 20,000? If not we move to the 65. And, Mr. White,
you had your question regarding the BPR and before you ask your question. Director,
we shall work together because on payroll for me it’s like 15 years already this mess
that we got to get squared away so I look forward to working with you, sir, and
hopefully we can come up with some improvements.
MR. AGSALOQ: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, my question was to if the Director could
share with us the purpose of the BPR.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Director?
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And this business process that we do is we do a
transactional with the... transactional cost with AD? meaning if we have more
transactions to do and if departments want to do different way of doing things we work
with AD? and every time they allocate personnel to look at the processes that we want
them to look at, we are charged a certain amount for their work. Ill give you a very
good example, the Police that went to.. .went to a 9:00-5:00 schedule in Wailuku for
their timing, we work with ADP to assess and how this thing going to be implemented
because it’s a new pilot requirements by the Police Department. And we were able to
get it to them. It took some time to do it, but again working with ADP when we have
changes as far as the rules of our payroll they will request some payment for it.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, the question it seems to infer that the BPR is being done to
provide some input for upgrading IFAS to ONESolution.
MR. AGSALOG: Oh, this part of it of the financial system we were requesting because the
IFAS system now is going on a.. .the life of it is, it’s kind of aging and we are looking at
going into ONESolution which is the newer version of our financial system. And right
now, Mr. Chair, is we can... we do not have the technical support that we used to have
with regards to the IFAS system that we have. And as part of our request for the
Fiscal Year ‘17 Budget is to go to ONESolution which I discussed with you in our
meeting, Mr. Chair, that we’re going to be requesting that. The IFAS system with
SunQard when we do some reports that we need to do we also paying for that.
MR. 3AZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. The upgrade is really an important factor. I mean the County’s
financial standing is based on this system that was developed 22 years ago. Basically
it’s been in place, the base of it has been in place since 1994, and the Chart of
Accounts has been, you know, developed, and maintained and utilized basically since
that time. It’s created some challenges when we want to print out certain types of
reports. The financial Systems Analyst which is sitting in the room over there has to
basically pull out her hair trying to figure how the Chart of Accounts, you know, was
created, you know, with these index codes, sub-object codes, you know, object level,
activity levels. You know we got... so sorry, long story short is that we need to look at
our business process, right. So, we’ve been.. .we’ve developed our current business
process based on, you know, the system has been in place for 22 years and that’s how
Finance Accounts operates. What we want to look at is that the best way to operate?
Should we be doing things differently or should we be, you know, ‘cause we can just
buy a system, you know, this new ONESolution and have it overlay what we’re doing
now. But a better idea is to look at our business processes to see if this is something
that, you know, should we move this process forward to a new system or should we
change the process itself? Create some more efficiencies, create better opportunities
to provide, you know, good information not just for CAFR-based information but for
management-based information too. One of the, I think, a challenge of the current
system is that it’s been developed with the main mindset of producing the CAFR. So
from a management perspective it’s sometimes difficult for us to pull reports out that
we need to evaluate properly the best of the actual operations of a certain section or
department. So to overcome those challenges to meet both of those requirements of
producing the CAFR and having a better management tool, we want to look at our
business processes themselves and see where those can be changed and those can be
modified and hopefully become more efficient, effective, and responsive within our
accounting system itself.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. My recollection is that you.. .there was a request to
upgrade IFAS to ONESolution last year. Are we going to... and it sounds like you’re
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making that same request again in the Budget this year. Will this BPR be completed
by the lime we’re fmalizing our review of the Budget?
MR. BAZ: I don’t believe so. No, it will be reviewed during, you know, the next few months
so that we can upgrade properly, right. We need to upgrade anyway. I don’t think
that that’s... so what Director Agsalog mentioned is that the current IFAS 7i is at the
end of its useful life cycle. It’s at the end of its supported cycle as well. SunQard
doesn’t support IFAS 7i anymore, our current software systems. We’ve been able to
get third-party support but the actual base system SunGard no longer supports. So
the need to upgrade IFAS is existent whether or not we go through a Business Process
Review. A Business Process Review will help us with the implementation of an IFAS
upgrade because then we’ll be able to review, you know, what needs to be changed
along with just a strict software upgrade.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So are we looking at doing the... looking at ONESolution as a sole
source or is this something that we’ll be using the BPR to generate an RFP to replace
the system?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, we have looked at a couple of different systems and continue to look at
those different systems before we decide on a sole source, you know, just a strict
software upgrade from SunGard, you know, the provider for our system. There’s
significant advantages to using the same provider, you know. If we don’t have a
significant amount of changes in our business processes then it will be very simple.
One of the big challenges we had with any data going back before 1994 and then when
there was a consolidation early 2000s is that the data became no longer available. We
couldn’t even print reports out that made any sense ‘cause everything had just been
collapsed and, you know, replaced so that a Chart of Accounts could be created. So
that’s one big factor we’re going to be looking at in a system upgrade is, you know,
how compatible will it be so that we can utilize our system to do reports. And right
now we’re leaning towards, you know, utilizing ONESolution and it would be a
sole-source purchase but there are also add-ons that we can.. .we’re looking at for
dashboard management systems as well.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, ONESolution is provided by the same company?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, questions?

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, questions? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No thanks.
-27-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say, Mr. Baz, I’m happy to hear your comments ‘cause that’s an
approach I can be supportive of but I think we need to expand it, look at all other,
some other areas also that might impact Finance, which is the billings and receiving.
So, I’m looking at possibly one provider doing multiple departments’ requirements
including Water, and just add buckets from the main vendor that we might want to
select as the main provider of our foundation for the future. So, I will be working with
Mr. Baz on this one, Members, to see if it makes sense for us to do some consolidation
instead of allow each department to go on its own merry way. So that’s how I’m going
to approach this working with our Directors and see if we can come up with some
other ways to approach the unending request for more money. Members, any other
questions on the 65,000 as requested by Mr. Agsalog? Having none, I’m... again, for
this point in time, the Chair is supportive of Mr. Agsalog’s request so I am open for a
motion to move forward to the Council for passage on first reading, be ordered to print
A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget for the County of Maui
as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues; Department of Finance, Accounts Program; Total
Operating Appropriations; and Total Appropriations (Operating and Capital
Improvement Projects), and to allow Staff to make any nonsubstantive revisions.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch. Any further
discussion, Members? Having none, all in favor of the motion, please say “aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say “no.” Motion passes with eight “ayes,” one excused.
VOTE:

AYES:

and
Vice-Chair
White,
Hokama,
Chair
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Criveilo, and Guzman.

NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
Councilmember Victorino.

EXC.:
MOTION CARRIED.

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

ACTION:

CHAIR HOKAMA:
morning.

Director Agsalog, thank you for your support and your presence this

MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, I appreciate you expediting this request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.

ITEM 13(1):

AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND PROGRAM ANNUAL PLAN
(FISCAL YEAR 2016 (JULY 1, 2015 TO JUNE 30, 2016)) (CC 15-274)

Okay, well bring up BF- 13(1) and well ask Ms. Reimann and her
CHAIR HOKAMA:
staff
to please join her. Okay, Mr. Baz, any opening comments under
appropriate
13(1) which is the heading of Affordable Housing Fund Program Annual Plan?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, your Committee started review of this back on January and we
continue the review of this and we have the Department here to answer any questions
regarding the plan or the proposed uses of the Affordable Housing Fund which is
required
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --annually.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz.
your opening comments.

Director Reimann, good morning.

We are... await

MS. REIMANN: Good morning, Chair, Members of the Council. The Fiscal Year 2016
Affordable Housing Fund request for proposal process began on June 30, 2015 with a
Nine organizations attended the
workshop conducted by the Housing Division.
workshop. The workshop is provided to review the RFP and application process as
well as address any questions. Public notices for the application process were
published on July 5th and 12th of 2015. The RFP application process officially
commenced on July 13th with a deadline of August 14th. Nine applications were
received. A three-member scoring committee was selected and the committee reviewed
and scored the applications based on the Housing Division’s scoring system which
-
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includes housing need, if the applicant clearly describes a need for their type of project
or program, specialized experience of the organization, project readiness, leverage
which takes into consideration the percentage of County funds being used such as
HOME, CDBG, or affordable housing to ensure the applicant is maximizing use of
non-County funds. The committee scores for each applications were averaged and the
top five were selected to be recommended by the Department for funding. The
agencies and projects recommended for funding in the 2016 Fiscal Year Annual Plan
include Hale Mahaolu for the Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Project of 38 senior rentals
Upcountry for $2,500,000. The Arc of Maui for the Arc of Maui Group Home
Rehabilitation Project encompassing approximately 46 special needs homes in the
amount of $580,859. Aloha House for the Aloha House Clean and Sober Acquisition 2
Project in the amount of $450,000. Fabmac Homes for the Fabmac Affordable
Housing Project for the acquisition and construction of 3 homes for $450,000.
Ama Lani Pacific LLC for the Kaiaulu Project that includes 33 affordable units in the
heart of Kaanapali. And also included in the Annual Plan is an administration reserve
of $70,000. So the total funding recommended for Fiscal Year 2016 Annual Plan is
$4,934,859. All five of the organizations that we are recommending are here today to
answer any technical questions about their projects and the Department is also here
to answer any of your questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Mr. Haake [sic], any comments you might want to
share with the Committee at this time?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. No, Director Reimann described perfectly the process we
conduct annually for the Affordable Housing fund and we’re both available to answer
any questions the Committee may have. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Director, one of the things that I guess for us is an important thing
is where would you estimate with the amount of monies we’re spending in this fund,
from this fund in addressing the affordable issue? It’s very open ended ‘cause, you
know, I just would like your thoughts on this. Are we making headway? Are we going
backwards? Are we further in the hole? Are we keeping our head above water? Are
we achieving what the legislative intent was for this fund?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. Per Section 3.35 of the Maui County Code we basically
look.. .we conduct a workshop, we go over the process, the type of projects that are
approved or allowed through funding for the Affordable Housing Fund. And we
definitely encourage for a wide variety of affordable housing applicants to come
forward if they meet the criteria and put in an application for funding. As you know
we have needs across the line with for-sale, rental and special needs, senior housing,
so we were definitely encouraged by the amount of applications we received and the
diversity of which the needs that they met. So from that point of view we tried to be
proactive, do outreach and try and get.. .we’re allocated approximately $5 million a
year to this particular fund. We want to touch as many areas as we can so we were
pleased again with the diversity of the applications that we received to try and meet all
the needs of Maui County.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: With all the previous approvals we gave, where are those projects at? All
completed? Half completed? Half down the toilet?
MR. ALMEIDA: Recently we submitted an update to Chair White with regards to the status
of the Affordable Housing Fund. It’s kept track since Fiscal Year 2010 and to date all
of the projects have been completed aside from current ongoing projects that include
the County of Maui’s Kulamalu Project as well as the Mokuhau Project that Lokahi
Pacific is the developer for. I’m sure you’re aware they’ve run into a couple of glitches
that we’re trying to work with them to resolve. The only other project that has not
closed out is the Harbor Lights Project that was under Habitat for Humanity. They
ran into some problems. They bought properties from foreclosure at Harbor Lights
and then rehab them and look to sell them and they had problems getting clear title to
about half of the projects due to tax liens. They’ve almost worked their way through
litigation and they only have two more that are left to sell. The families that are going
to purchase them are currently prequal’d and are renting the units until such time as,
you know, clear title is received and they can officially transfer the sale of the property
to them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is those rental monies that they currently paying go toward the purchase?
MR. ALMEIDA: I believe theyire put towards the sweat equity that’s required with regards to
Habitat’s program so they work out a system to where the.. .you know, they match the
hours and the equity that they put into the rentals to meet that need to that
requirement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello, questions for our Department in general on just
what they prepared before we go to each project?
COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO:
Thank you.

Not at this time.

fll wait till you go line by line, Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any questions at this time, Members, or... Ms. Balsa, please?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I have a generic question. I
understand that these projects were selected in a process and I’m kind of curious as to
what were the major criteria, how these projects were selected?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR.

As
And thank you, Councilmember Balsa.
Thank you, Chair.
ALMEIDA:
Director Reimann, she kind of touched on the major ones that we looked to, with
regards to scoring. Primarily the need of the housing projects that’s being proposed,
also the specialized experience of the organization and the type of project that they are
recommending. Project readiness is crucial because we’ve gotten in trouble in the past
where well provide funding to a project that is not as close as it should have been to
moving forward and funds can get tied up and they end up having to come back to us
repeatedly to move the project along. So we want to make sure that they’ve leveraged
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the necessary funding or they fundraised for it so that,.. or they’ve gotten it from a
bank if it’s a larger project. So that we know that our contribution is going to be well
leveraged with committed funds to ensure that the project is going to happen and
move forward. So those are the crucial elements that we look for with regards to the
scoring of a project.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Chair. Thank you.

Okay.

As we go through the projects I have more questions,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And this is kind of a generic question
‘cause it relates to two of the projects. My concern is that we’re putting in about
$1.5 million towards solar panels and I thought the Affordable Housing Fund was to
provide for homes or down-payment assistance or other assistance other than adding
solar panels to homes. I understand and I have no problem with solar panels but I
don’t know that the Affordable Housing Fund might be the method of that. So that’s
my concern in general and then when we get to the projects I’ll bring that up again.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, you have a comment at this time?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Generally speaking the fund is for the provision, protection,
expansion of affordable housing and suitable living environments for residents. So
these general additions to a project or home probably fit within the purpose of the
fund. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, I understand that it’s
CHAIR HOKAMA: Stretching, stretching it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah it could be stretching but

--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --at least it’s my thought that the Affordable Housing Fund was
for
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Units.
--assisting people, units and, you know, we have been
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
discussing the down-payment assistance, for 250k to help 15 people that’s, you know,
that’s. ..we haven’t supported that in the last couple terms. But if you go 1.5 million
that can help.. .if you do down-payment assistance that can help a thousand families if
-
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I’m doing my math right. You know I have, balancing that versus solar panels I have
issues with that, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we can.. .you can have more detailed discussion when we bring up
the specific project, Mr. Couch. Happy to entertain it then.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. And on an aside too it’s not just addition to existing homes.
So it’s part of the
This is part.. .these homes haven’t been constructed yet.
built
homes.
onto
newly
So
it’s not 33 existing
construction process theyll be added
homes that will have panels added on. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. White?

Okay, thank you very much.

Further questions on this at this time?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not a question, I just, I have the same concern that Mr. Couch had
when I was looking at this yesterday. It just... it struck me that this is kind of like a
lottery win if we’re providing a full photovoltaic system for, in the Kaanapali project for
33 homes. That means that for.. .those lucky 33 we are providing an opportunity to
avoid most of your electric bill for the next 30 years or so. And I’m just not sure that
that’s the purpose of the fund. I realize that it’s probably something that’s, that would
comply with the letter of the law but certainly not the intent. So I look forward to that
discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair will.. .before I recognize Ms. Cochran and I did see you,
Ms. Cochran, the Chair will state that we will... I will be sending to the Director and
Department a letter requesting information that is required through the Annual
Report, things like the amount of units created or assisted, geographical distribution,
statistical data. Plus, Members, Council years ago created that fund with Maui
Electric for basically no-interest solar heater programs, and I think we made a policy
that all homes... newly constructed homes in this County shall have solar water heater
options or requirements. And so I find that they asking for this when we already have
a program in place that the utility works with the County cooperatively, and I believe
we’ve put couple of hundreds of thousands of dollars in it. I don’t know why we would
consider this one in this manner now. Ms. Cochran?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Chair. And as this is in the district that I
represent I had the opportunity to go through with the applicants and that was a
concern for me. I basically just explained this is very unusual. I have not personally
seen it during my tenure here, and it’s up to this body to decide and I’m hearing some
questions also as I did too with this particular application. Although their reasoning
and justification was so they can keep the units affordable. This will help assist the
cost and, you know, the pass down to the purchaser would be that they can keep it.
So that was their justification which okay I understand but again it’s a very unusual
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ask from this fund in particular to.. .for us to address. So, I’m looking forward to
further discussion, Chair. I just wanted to put that out there to explain that I too
went to go walk this area and check it out but we’ll talk more about that later. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else at this time? Director, any comments you’d like
to share back at this time? Mr. Haake [sic], anything at this time you want to share?

MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. No just to concur with Ms. Cochran’s comments. In
meetings and discussions with the developer it was a part of the overall construction
budget, a means to keep the houses affordable. It’s as you know, you know, difficult
to get affordable homes especially in this particular area. We viewed it as a really good
opportunity and it helps the 33 owners again maintain the properties and with the
voltaic system installed, you know, it keeps the cost down with regards to their
utilities and it’s just an added benefit to them as well as assisting getting.. .this is 100
percent affordable project, just getting it completed. So we supported it based on
those justifications. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Haake [sic]. Members, Staff is handing out to you a report
dated February 5, 2016 under Update Status Report of all Affordable Housing Fund
Projects. It does not... it’s a good update so I thank the Director and her Department
for it but it does not satisfy the Code under 3.35 and that is what we’re going to be
requesting information on as required by the Code. Okay with that, Director, as soon
as Ms. Yoshimura is done we’ll start with the first item today. And the first one we
would ask you to bring up is the Arc of Maui, $580,859. Director, your comments?
MS. REIMANN: Chair? Chair, we have a representative from ARC here if you would indulge.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so you have no comments on this project?
MS. REIMANN: No, I said in my opening remarks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine. Good morning. Why don’t you identify yourself and the
organization?
MR. LANE: Good morning, aloha, Mr. Chair, Councilmembers. My name is Robert Lane. I
amthe...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Closer to the mic.
MR. LANE: Good morning, my name is Robert Lane. I’m the CEO of Arc of Maui County.
I’m here today to answer any questions you might have regarding our affordable
housing application.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have no other comments you want to share with us?
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MR. LANE: Just in regard to a couple of the comments that had been made just a few
I can speak to our,. .the portion in our application regarding
minutes ago.
photovoltaic. As a part of the renovation, overall renovation of our homes here in Arc
of Maui, we’ve.., these homes have existed for a number of years and have provided
services to individuals with developmental and a wide variety of special needs here in
Maui County. Our intent was to provide an overall renovation to continue to make
sure that these homes can be maintained as affordable housing in the truest sense.
The photovoltaic upgrades were ones that we looked at as an opportunity for us to
minimize our overhead to make sure that, you know, every dollar we can save on
expenditures is another dollar we can put towards the care of our clients. Just as an
average annual expenditure for our electric bills in our.. .in the homes that are
represented here, we spend anywhere between 40,000 and $50,000 per year in electric
bills. So, you can see where the photovoltaic panels would allow us to redirect those
funds to, you know, staff training, to providing other opportunities for our clients that
wouldn’t otherwise be there. So that’s where we looked at this as an opportunity for,
you know, to add it to our overall expansion and renovation projects and saw it as
applicable for the project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Ms. Balsa, I will start with you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, I have a question and I
don’t know if it’s necessarily for the person that’s here and if you know the answer
fine, if not maybe somebody can help me. But I remember quite a few years ago when
Cameron Center did their big project they didn’t have to put down any money because
they did a PPA with the company and they installed all of that and a lot of this was
repaid by electrical savings. Is that still available or is that not available? Or, you
know, why are we having to put out all this money?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding is that fund still exists and we should be getting at
least annual reports from the utility saying how many. the status of the fund because
it’s a revolving fund.
.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I’m just wondering if, you know, they would be eligible for that
kind of situation and then maybe no money upfront. I do know that it’s been done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well send a letter to get a status of that fund, Ms. Balsa, ‘cause I would
like to know.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, it’s these Power Purchase Agreements that they make.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we can.. .we shall request that update information. Happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, thank you.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And I am in great support of Arc of Maui and I like the work you
do and I think it’s really important because we have a lot of people with special needs
who need a place to live. But, you know, if we can fmd another way to take care of
that expense, why not? Thank you.
MR. LANE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll? Questions, sir? Mr. Guzman, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I also would agree with Ms. Balsa on
following up on that. This is for voltaic improvements on the existing homes?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, my understanding this is for homes that will be rehabilitated as part of
their narrative.
I believe that the gentleman mentioned some voltaic
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
improvements. Is this... is that what the money is being used for?
MR. LANE: Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, these would all be new systems. We don’t currently
have any photovoltaic systems on any of our homes. So these would all be new.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So that’s specifically in regards to the rehabilitation
and offsite improvements, that’s what you’re talking about?
MR. LANE: Correct. It’s for our six homes that we currently operate.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Okay, so the entire amount of the 580,000 is for
photovoltaic systems and not actual rehabilitation of the units?
MR. LANE: Oh, no I’m sorry it’s broken down in the budget. It’s roughly 50 percent for the
PV systems and the other 50 percent is for the renovation of the homes. As far as
kitchen upgrades, lighting, plumbing fixtures, et cetera, et cetera. No, I apologize if
that wasn’t clear but, you know, there’s a... approximately 50 percent is for the
photovoltaic systems for all six homes and then renovation to upgrade the homes
and
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, I think, okay, yeah, now I can see what the.. .it looks like it’s
approximately 328,000 of the total?
MR. LANE: Yes.
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. LANE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you for being here.
looking at rehabbing five of the six?

So out of the six homes you’re

MR. LANE: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: On Maui, yeah. So say like your.. .any of.. .1 note here the
Arc home on Molokai is new so that probably won’t be utilizing any of the funds. So
how old are these homes?
MR. LANE: The homes are approximately 30 years old. They were built with HUD funding
all at that same time essentially.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you. Thank you for the work you do.
MR. LANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for being here. Thank
you for the work you do as well.
MR. LANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, you said it’s around 300 and some thousand for the
photovoltaic. Have you gotten agreements with MECO? I mean they’re okay with you
putting it in because I know there have been issues with MECO not doing agreements
anymore.
MR. LANE: We have submitted all of the necessary applications and are in that waiting
process that MECO makes you go through. So we’re in the queue at this point in
time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we’re not, you’re not guaranteed an agreement then because
it’s my understanding that the PUC put a stop to the... at least the net metering
portion and I think now that they’re coming back with a much lower per kilowatt hour
payback.
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MR. LANE: Mr. Chair and Councilmembers, my understanding is, from MECO is that
we’re... that there’s no reason why we won’t be approved. We’ve haven’t been given any
feedback that would say that our homes fall outside of, you know, any type of approval
process. It’s just a function of, you know, when we get approval but everything has
been submitted and we’re just waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And... Mr. Chair? You mentioned that you spent about 50,000
a year on electricity, that’s in total on all the homes?
MR. LANE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s a lot of power. Ms. Cochran, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for the service you do
provide for this County. It’s definitely very needed and appreciated. And so you
folks... I mean the age of the homes kind of startled me because to put on PV, you
know, you need to have very sound foundation and structure. And so that has all
been looked into?
MR. LANE: It has.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And you won’t have to reroof and, you know, beef up the
structure of these older homes?
MR. LANE: We’ve addressed all of those questions and they’re all at this point sufficient for
the photovoltaic.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Airight. Very good. And so the $50,000 total utility
bill that is for your 29 units, you have.. .total across the board?
MR. LANE: Yes, that would be for all 6 of our homes, 40,000 to 50,000 is roughly what we
average in any given year in electric bills for our residential homes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
much.

Okay,

Mright.

Well, thank you.

Chair, thank you very

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So when you put down between four to six homes, I know you
got four operational, two I guess spares, when you’re going to make the determination
of what is exact units that you’re going to work on?
MR. LANE: Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, at the time when we had made the application to
the homes, the one in Maunaloa on Molokai, and our home in Wailuku were still in
the licensing process. And so that’s why the initial four homes were noted with the
other two homes still pending but our home on Molokai is now licensed and is
operating. And our home in Wailuku is in... we should be up and running with that
-
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home, with the residential clients. It’s already been operating as a day program but
the residential clients will be starting within the matter of a month or two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. On your Page 4 of your submittal youre asking us to help pay for
Split System Air Conditioning. I find it interesting since the one for Lahaina is louver
windows. So how do you make that determination who gets AC and who doesn’t get
AC?
MR. LANE: Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, we were looking at changing our windows as well so
some of the upgrades and the renovations in the homes would be addressing some of
the homes like the Napili home where the louvered windows may be coming out and
different higher efficiency windows would be going in as well because of the age of the
Our maintenance manager was
louvers and the way that they’re constructed.
suggesting replacing some of those.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, ‘cause, you know, when you look at Lahaina 6.75 kilowatt compared
to the Maria Group Home 23.
MR. LANE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. One other thing I wanted to ask you, your prospective
residents or tenants of this they qualify for Section 8?
MR. LANE: Yes, they do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: All of them have Section 8 vouchers?
MR. LANE: Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, not all of them do. We have made applications
when the Section 8 vouchers were open and available. Currently, we have one.. .we
have five of our residents that do not have Section 8 applications or approvals at this
time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so they have enough financial wherewithal to take care of their own
requirements then, financial requirements?
MR. LANE: We receive funding through the Department of Health reimbursements that cover
their daily cares.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions, Members, on this project? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Having done the math, I did it in my
head and it was a little off so I did it on a calculator and it worked. So if I do the
math, yeah, 6 homes, 50,000 per... 50,000 divided by 6 divided by 12 is about $700 a
month per home for electricity, that’s awfully high. I mean my bill is pretty high and
it’s at 350 so.
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MR. LANE: Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, you’re correct it does.. .our homes do run quite high
and it is 40,000 to 50,000 per year on average. But the clients who live in our homes
effectively are.. .there’s.. considered an intermediate care facilities which are kind of in
layman terms almost equivalent to nursing home facilities in terms of the level of care
within a residential neighborhood, which means that they require 24-hour staffing.
They require staff to be in the home with the clients and to provide services at a much
higher level. So not only do you have the five clients but you have the, you know,
probably in any given day five to seven staff that are coming and going. Each of
homes, you know, unfortunately they’re not... they weren’t built with the most efficient
systems in place for things like air conditioning. They have commercial usages in
terms of food service so the number of, you know, the types of kitchen wear and tear.
The laundry alone is like a small, you know, nursing home essentially. So those types
of things just compound and would really speak to more of a facility type usage than a
home comparability.
.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And the panels did you do the calculations and whatnot
and is it going to eliminate your electric bill as in the $18 charge a month or whatever
they’re going to charge next?
MR. LANE: Yes. Mr. Chair, Councilmembers, so what we did in terms of taking a look at
that is we brought in three solar companies and had them each do an analysis. And
effectively what they did is came out and they looked at the energy bills and then they
looked at the homes and kind of did their own calculations. And then we took the
average of those three and that’s how we came up with what you see on our proposal.
And they were all pretty close to each other so we felt fairly comfortable with the
numbers that they were representative of what our needs were with the solar panels.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
payback “ish”?

So if this were to happen it would be about a 10-11 year

MR. LANE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any other questions for this project? Okay, thank
you very much for your presence, Mr. Lane.
MR. LANE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well now bring up project number two, 450,000 for Fabmac Affordable
House Project. Director, any comments? And my apologies to Mr. Mmeida I said
Yeah, they’re both buddies but wrong family so my apologies to
Mr. Haake.
Mr. Almeida.
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. With regards to the Fabmac Home Project unfortunately
the owner of fabmac Homes, Francesca Carey could not be with us this morning.
They had a medical situation they had to attend to her and her husband. With us
-
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here this morning are francine Fernandez and Charlie Morgan. They can attest to the
operations themselves if you have any questions specific to how Fabmac Homes
constructs, builds, designs and we will do our best to address any other questions
that you might have ‘cause they do not have a total overall understanding of the RFP
application that was submitted and that you have reviewed. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Whichever one wants to share some comments please
do and identify yourself, please.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Hi. Hi, I’m Francine Fernandez and I’m really just here to address any
questions you have and we hope that we can answer them to the best
MR. MORGAN: I’m Charlie Morgan. I take care of all the construction side, the deliveries of
the home, and the assembly of all the homes.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello, any questions for our

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --resource people?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here. So I note that
this grant application is to purchase land or to put a down payment for purchase of
lands.
MS. FERNANDEZ: It’s actually going to be put towards the purchase of the land and then
the home together so it will discount the total cost.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So are the lands available for purchase or is it purchased
already? Or is, you know, do you have infrastructure and everything else as well as
necessary entitlements?
MS. FERNANDEZ: We haven’t purchased any land yet, no. We have in the past purchased
land and put homes on it and put them for sale but we don’t have any land right now
that we’re in... that we’ve purchased for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So how did you come up with the figures if there are no
lands available for purchase right now? Are you still shopping for the real estate?
MS. FERNANDEZ: We are looking for the real estate. We have actually purchased land in
the past so we use that as a comparison with putting our homes on it to keep it in
the... to be able to make it affordable.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you. That’s all I have for now, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White, any questions?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m a little concerned that they don’t have.., do you have specific
parcels that you’re looking at or?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Yes, we are working with a realtor and she does look for land for us and
we go out there and look at it to see if our homes can get there and if it will be
affordable to meet what we’re trying to do.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions? Ms. Balsa, any questions for our
people?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know I’m going back to my original question and my first
question today was the criteria and, you know, as we compare the various projects
and we look at them, I don’t know how much weight in the process was given to how
many homes will be created and how many people will be put in housing. And that’s,
you know, each project of course has its own merits and I understand what Fabmac
does and they do a great job. But, you know, when we’re comparing the projects, I
don’t know how that was done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. We can ask the Department.
Mr. Almeida, if you can respond to Ms. Balsa please.

So, Director Reimann or

MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Councilmember Balsa, for that question.
Fabmac Homes has applied for funding in prior years, unfortunately never scored high
enough to be recommended for funding; however, we have gotten opportunities to
meet with them to see their product. We recommended that they kind of downscaled
what they were looking to do because I think this is a very fascinating means of
providing affordable housing if it works. Because obviously you’re not going to be able
to buy 3 lots for 450,000 but with the combination of their predesigned homes it helps
towards the acquisition of the land. And if this model proves successful then I think it
would be a good way to do it on a larger scale in the future. So we wanted to... I mean
The scoring committee
the recommendation was to keep it small, they did.
acknowledged, you know, basically being able to get three affordable homes for, you
know, $450,000 investment based on the prefab design and we were all in support of
that process and hopeful that, you know, it’s efficient, that it works and that maybe
this is a means that we can use as a path to future housing development. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So you’re kind of looking at this as some kind of a demonstration
project?
MR. ALMEIDA: Yeah, we wanted to keep it on a manageable scale to begin with, something
reasonable, a reasonable investment that we could make sure the return was
adequate and the process was efficient.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, you know, in my mind and, you know, I hate to do this
now, we can do it later, Chair, ‘cause I don’t want them standing there but I was
-
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thinking like how do you compare this with the projects that, oh dear,
John Andersen’s group, Na Hale 0 Maui, how do you compare and why did you
choose one instead of the other? But I don’t think we want to do this with the
applicant here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: W&1l have that discussion, Ms. Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So thank you. Let’s see, did I ask you, Ms. Cochran, if you had questions
for our
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --resource people? Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. And thank you, folks, for being here.
Yeah, I see Francesca on her commercial all the time. It looks wonderful. And so I
guess, sorry, question for Department more so as Ms. Balsa pointed out the criteria’s
and readiness is definitely one of the top four. And so I’m wondering where is the
readiness here because they haven’t even.. .1 mean you’re looking, you have a realtor
you’re confiding in but it’s not shovel ready. We just got a comment from Habitat
where at the time they applied they weren’t, now they are shovel ready. They would
like to be back on the list. So I guess to address the readiness factor for this
particular applicant.
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Member Cochran, for that question.
Yeah, basically with regards to readiness this is kind of a Catch-22. It’s hard for the
developer/owner to buy the land if they don’t have assurance that the money is going
to come through for, you know, the subsidy is going to come through. So they have
their feels out there. They’re working diligently with a realtor but they can’t really
commit to the purchase unless they know that our funding subsidy is going to be
available. So that’s taken into consideration when the scoring is done. Thank you.
COUNCILMEM3ER COCHRAN: Thank you. And I guess the applicant has three years to
complete I guess as the.. .when funding is given. There’s a time limit for them to utilize
or is this... cause you said the spend down sometimes you have
MR. ALMEIDA: I can defer to Mr. Ueoka if there is but if you wanted to place one in the
grant that is something we can definitely consider doing but I’m not sure if there’s a
time limit they have in order to acquire the properties.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Oh, wait, sorry, Chair, I was looking at this list,
and I guess it’s Fabmac
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Fabmac’s milestones that you have achieved 100 percent
occupancy. I guess within 3 years you normally complete your projects in that
timeframe?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Our projects are done in four to six months. So once we acquire the land
and we have done that in the past, and we actually have two homes right now. One in
Waikapu and one in Pukalani that is reaching completion, but we purchase the land,
we order the home. The home is here within 60 days and then it takes our crew about
another 60 days to complete it and go through the process of getting it done and then
it’s move-in ready. When the home occupant moves in it’s done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Instant home. Airight. Thank you. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well close to instant anyway. Thank you, Mr. Chair. And
thank you, folks, for being here. When the person moves into the home, you know, it’s
bought. It looks like you’ve got 150.. .80 to 90 percent income, 110 percent income,
and 120 to 130 percent income, pretty high prices still even with the subsidy.
Although as Ms. Cochran says it’s fairly instant housing which is kind of nice.
Question I have is are there any deed restrictions? Are they required to keep it at an
affordable... they can’t sell it within so many years or is it automatically they can sell it
next year and make money if they like?
MS. FERNANDEZ: No, I was involved in some of the meetings where they did discuss they
are going to put deed restrictions in place so they can’t just turn around and sell it,
resell it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you happen to know what those are?
MS. FERNANDEZ: I don’t right off.. .yeah, I don’t have that information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They’re on Page 3 and 4 of their application, 25 years. Deed restrictions.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: Okay. Are those going to be required by us or that’s just their
program?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, you have a comment?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Three-point-three-five requires for the terms of affordability
subject to the restrictions of, we’d follow 2.96 essentially that’s in the County Code.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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And I still have the same questions as Ms. Balsa and
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Ms. Cochran about.. .1 mean this is... again they do great work but places like Na Hale
O Maui you put that funding into there, that’s in perpetuity those homes are
affordable. So I would like to know what the justification was for them versus Na Hale
O Maui especially since I believe they’re looking at 10 or 12 that they need to do right
away too and they have the land, I believe they have the land and whatnot. So, I
guess it’s the readiness and the, you know, scoring, how that works and that’s not
their issue so when you come, when we discuss it with the Department. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any specific questions, Members, for our... Ms. Fernandez or
Mr. Morgan at this time? Okay. Thank you for being here.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Thank you.
MR. MORGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate it. You know one thing I will ask the Department in the
future if maybe we can work together. I know you following what you folks believe is
the Code but my thing is we’re not really attacking the problem. We’re kind of like
limping along three units here, four units here. And for me we’re at a point where
without subsidy there’s no such thing. And real affordable housing shouldn’t depend
on subsidy ‘cause then only the few that get selected has an affordable unit. And for
those of us that did it the hard way and we have to pay for the subsidy comes the
question of fairness. So for me, Members, we’re going to need to maybe approach this
issue slightly different. I will tell you upfront in Budget I’m going to approach it from a
taxation issue with taxes. This is the one and basically only thing counties have that
taxes wealth. Everything else is a transaction or a fee. This is the only tax basically
that taxes wealth. And I will be having the University of Hawaii Center for Continuous
Labor Education to provide us with some recommendations on how to approach real
property taxation to hit the affordable issue. Because for me we may get 3, 4 units
here but if we’re going backwards ‘cause we still have a demand of a new 100 units are
we really dealing with the issue? ‘Cause I can’t afford this subsidy. We’re already
subsidizing ag. We’re going to subsidize... I mean when do we.. .what do we not
subsidize? So saying that, we need to find some innovative ways, Members. We’ll
bring up Kaiaulu $884,000 for 33 homes. Department, any opening comments?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. No, Mr. Kihune is obviously with his project very
knowledgeable with regards to this type of construction and he will be available to
answer any questions you may have. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Kihune, welcome, good to see you.
MR. IGHUNE: Good morning. Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee Members, I appreciate
the time. We are here. We had applied for a grant. Ama Lani Pacific, LLC is a newly
formed company a little over a year ago. Our main goal is to provide and develop
100 percent affordable projects on the Island of Maui or the County of Maui. With
that being said we have a parcel on the West Side that we’re developing 33
-
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100 percent affordable homes. Very attractive, views of the golf course, views of the
resort. We’re pretty proud of this project. We hope to break ground by April... between
April f St and May 1st, that’s our goal right now. The decision to go for the grant was
mainly because we thought that if we could make it more affordable with the help of
the Housing Fund the homeowners could enjoy a home at a price that they could live
in hopefully perpetually or for a majority of their lives. We are following the ordinance
to its letter with regards to the buyback periods and everything else that’s entailed as
part of that ordinance. We’re not asking for any special requests but we just thought
that since the State and the County has an initiative to go green within the next 30
years or so that this would be a project where we could start. Sandy Duvauchelle who
is also working with us as part of our group and Howard Sr. who most of you know is
also a consultant to my company; we are also looking at a parcel on the South Side to
develop probably 70 or more homes 100 percent affordable. We will take the plans
from this project and utilize them for the project on the South Side. Currently looking
at and working with a couple landowners on the West Side for additional parcels to
develop hopefully in the next 2 years another 150 homes on the West Side. We are
not.., our lender is HomeStreet Bank. They’ve done a really good job by.. .for us and we
continue to work with them. Again, my family is from the West Side. I’d like to see us
provide housing on the West Side because that seems to be and is the biggest issue for
Ms. Cochran’s district not to mention other districts in the County but the West Side
is very difficult right now. Rents are astronomical. But again get away from that,
that’s what we’re here for, we’re trying to keep the cost for the homeowner within
reason. So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kihune. Again, Members, this is for a request of $884,000
in the West Maui Kaanapali District. Ms. Cochran, questions?
And thank you, Mr. Kihune and
Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Ms. Duvauchelle for your time in touring me around the site. I had gone up there and
it’s wonderful. I mean yes right off the golf course and prices that they’re looking to
rate these at is definitely unheard of in West Maui. So I definitely appreciate that.
And again as we mentioned earlier in regards to photovoltaic’s being asked of through
this fund we all have sort of that question mark like okay but as I mentioned earlier to
the justification that applicants mentioned to me and reiterated again just now is to
keep these units affordable is why they are seeking to get funds for this, for these
photovoltaic’s. So, Chair, I don’t really have any questions. I think everything is in
their application as to where their prices are going to range, how many units are going
to be provided and things of that nature. And again I think the area, what’s
surrounding this are not these type of prices homes. You know you got very high,
high-end so what a nice place for people to have an affordable setup I guess so to
I did notice that the highway is directly below all those
speak in this area.
bougainvillea and bushes are obstructing it but the sound does carry. I mentioned
that at our site inspection and they will be looking into, you know, putting in hopefully
some sound, you know, barriers to assist with the units and what have you. But
overall it’s a good area. I’d like to also hopefully theyre going to speak to possibly
utilizing recycled water because the golf courses are using our R- 1 currently and I
know we do have a rule in place saying that if you’re within so many feet of lines that
-
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you are to tap into those lines and utilize it. So I’m hoping that they’re going to, you
know, put that in, implement that into this project. But with that, Chair, I don’t really
have any direct questions at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, Mr. Chair. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Kihune, for being
here. Love the idea of the project, 33 affordable homes. The prices you give in here,
372 to 579 for the sizes, that would include the subsidy for the PV?
MR. KIHUNE: That’s correct, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if the PV didn’t.. .if for some reason the PV wasn’t done you’d
add about 27,000 “ish” to each home?
MR. KIHUNE: We would probably not add any more pricing as far as hiking the prices of the
homes. We would keep the pricing where it’s at. Our civil work is our largest expense
because we’re going to be.. .we’re developing.., basically that area is full of rock. So
that’s our biggest expense. We are going with solar water heaters. We’re trying to
make the homes as green as possible. We really are trying to set a template for
affordable housing to be honest, that’s really what we’re trying to do. We’re not trying
to saying anyone else’s doing something at that standard but we really want to set the
bar. And if we do that and if we accomplish what we’re working towards then we want
to do that with the rest of the projects that we’re looking at. But sorry, yeah, to
answer your question yes we will not raise the price, it will stay where it’s at exactly
from what we’ve calculated.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. The other question I had with the other group. Do you
have an agreement with MECO already or are you on their list or how?
MR. KIHUNE: We talking to MECO, sorry to interrupt, we’re talking with MECO. We have
our electrical engineer who’s working with MECO. Because we don’t have our meter
numbers yet they won’t let us apply. You know how that works, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. IUHUNE: So we won’t install any solar if we do get awarded the grant until probably late
this year because we’re looking at anticipating again April 1st, May 1st civil work,
vertical construction probably about September and then we’re on that vertical
construction for about 12 months so to 14 months. So it will be later in the year if we
get to that point but once.. .with our electrical engineer we don’t anticipate anything
back from MECO probably for another three months just to be honest as far as net
metering.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you’ve heard our comments here, you know,
$885,000 could probably build 4 more homes, 3 or 4 more homes, right?
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MR. IUHUNE: Yes, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So I guess that’s... that’s what we’re trying to balance
here and I understand the need for photovoltaic and to keep it green so that’s
something that we’re going to have to weigh. The only other thing that in here for your
future projects, you probably haven’t been able to follow us raptly on Akaku ‘cause
youre busy doing work but we do or at least I’ve expressed a lot of concerns about
affordable rentals versus affordable homes that are going to go, not become affordable
after a certain amount of time
--

MR. KIHUNE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --whether it be 5, 8, 10 or 25 years. Twenty-five years I can
live with a little bit but once that home gets out of affordability then we’re back in the
same situation we’re in. So, we’re looking more towards either affordable rental or a
community land trust kind of thing where the homes stay in affordability. Is anything
like that going to happen on these 33? I know you mentioned, Mr. Chair, it’s a little
bit out of the scope of the subject but he did mention that he going to have more
further. Are you guys going to take that into consideration on this?
MR. KIHUNE: Yes, we are. We have.., the property that we’re working on right now on
South Maui there’s two phases. On that second phase of that property will be
100 percent. We’re looking at 100 percent affordable rental, probably 42 units. It will
be a duplex style and that’s what we’re looking at right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KIHUNE: And hopefully all of our projects will be green with PV and solar water, I mean
solar water heating for sure but with PV, that’s our goal.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here.
MR. KIHUNE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It sounds as though it’s shovel ready, it’s what I’m hearing
basically
--

MR. KIHUNE: Pretty much.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --for this project.
MR. KIHUNE: We’ve got a couple, yeah, things to get done.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, with the

--

MR. KIHUNE: With planning, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --planning and cracking all those rocks. So, you know, in
my early time here that’s all I hear is need for affordable whether it’s rentals or
purchase of homes. And I often wonder how we can get innovative with the developers
to make it happen and it’s beyond me that we have to have subsidy from government
and I think that’s one of the approaches maybe government would have to sort of
reduce the crisis that we’re facing here on Maui. So that being said I can appreciate
the efforts that you’re trying to put forth. So with the installation of the PV system,
the way you look at it is the buyer of these homes will actually be having an immense
savings towards what is a high cost for all of us with electricity cost and the possibility
apply that for... towards mortgage I guess, you know, if that’s the consideration. Is
that kind of... aside from your green concepts which are plans, is that something that
you considered also in I guess in attracting your buyers?
MR. KIHUNE: You mean as far as the low cost or no cost of energy

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. KIHUNE: --and the mortgage?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. KIHUNE: The banks really to be honest they don’t look at that as.. .they don’t take that
into consideration believe it or not, all. .(inaudthte). .institutions for some reason.
And we’ve gone around with them on a couple occasions with that. But, you know,
our goal is again to.. .the beneficiary will be the homebuyer and if we can help make it
as inexpensive regardless if it’s their mortgage, whatever percentage rate that, you
know, that they get awarded from their lender versus water usage, type of landscaping
we’re using, photovoltaic. So that’s kind of our whole goal. You know it’s unfortunate,
I wish the banks would look at it that way but they don’t, so.
.

.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But certainly the buyer.
MR. KIHUNE: The buyer does.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. KIHUNE: The buyer will look at it from a standpoint that, you know, this is really a
benefit to me. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You’re right as far as budgetary for that.
MR. KIHUNE: And it’s unfortunate I wish we could build 200 of these but we only got 33
right now so but maybe in the future, maybe in the next few years. Yeah.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. You know in working with the Housing Department
and listening to many of the I would say concerns or even cries of what’s.. .where can
we be, especially West Maui, South Maui and then it’s heavily into Central. So I
appreciate the innovative approach if that’s a way to use it and trying to see how we
can hopefully work together to make this kind of project a reality. So I appreciate it.
Thank you, Chair.
MR. KIHUNE: Thank you. And one quick note, you know, we’re hoping that our firemen,
policemen, teachers, mid-level managers in the hotels, employees, we’re hoping and
we’re anticipating that that’s the buyers that we’ll have. And I know we’ll most likely
have a lot more buyers than we have homes but that’s our goal.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know I think it’s exciting to have a project that
looks to me to be relatively shovel ready although not quite yet in Kaanapali because
everybody knows that there’s a major housing shortage on West Maui. So but I really
don’t have any questions, I just want to thank you for taking the risk and putting
yourself out there.
MR. JUHUNE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
I’d like to also thank Howard for coming down and
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
giving.. .presenting. I have a couple questions and
--

MR. JUHUNE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --this isn’t a 201H project, right?
MR. KIHUNE: No it’s not. This is a 2.96 amended ordinance that came out last year.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. KIHUNE: We’re following that ordinance to the “t”.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. And so
MR. IUHUNE: Mr. Ueoka was gracious enough to work with us on our... and the Housing
Department on our workforce housing agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So, in doing so did you get some, you know, I’m
assuming there was some exemptions that were... that allowed you to build, no?
-
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MR. KIHUNE: No, other than what is part of the ordinance we’re building it as pretty much if
any other market project other than whatever is afforded to us from the ordinance,
yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
the 20 1H route?

Okay. Is there a reason why you went that route instead of

MR. IUHUNE; You know like I said earlier we formed this company a little over a year ago to
try and see if we can help satisfy and help the workforce housing issue here on Maui,
affordable housing. And our goal was to stick with the County instead of going for
201H. We have zoning and stuff so we didn’t need to go that route to begin with
but... and that’s where we want to be. I mean if we had a property that was maybe ag
and we needed some help getting zoning then maybe 20 1H might be the direction but
right now we’re within the parameters so we’re staying where we’re at to be honest.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. And the only reason why I was asking that was
because, you know, if you go that route, the 201H, there’s exemptions and there’s
certain amount of monies that you could be exempt from and maybe those monies
could have gone to the solar systems or... but I understand.
MR. KIHUNE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So it’s basically in a sense we’re subsidizing a new project, so.
MR. KIHUNE: To some degree, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.

MR. KIHUNE: I mean if we’re awarded the photovoltaic, again we’re not the beneficiary it’s
going to be the homeowner.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right. Right.
MR. KIHUNE: But we are afforded some exemptions when it comes to, you know, certain
things like building permits, grading permits. Our fees are waived or reduced as
100 percent affordable project. So those are some of the, I would say, if you call ‘em
subsidies that we’re allowed but we’re waived, you know, some of those fees going
through the process.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No thank you, Chair, I already had made my comments. Thank
you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions? Before I call Ms. Cochran for her
next question, Department, you asking this Committee to consider $884,000 of
County money which in return that’s going to satisfy one corporation’s requirement for
affordable housing and we’re going to give 21 residential housing credits that we’re
going to pay for. Is that what you guys asking this Committee to approve to satisfy a
zoning or a commission requirement using our own money? That’s what I read on
Page 4.

MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. The Department through the Affordable Housing Fund
RFP application process that we put out annually, we are in support of the project and
the grant recommendation. It was recommended through the scoring of the projects
through the scoring committee. So we’re following the process that’s outlined for us to
address the RFP and we do support the project. We understand your comments and
your concerns but we’re basically just following through with the RFP process and
putting the applications out for recommendation for your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why should the County pay for a private corporation’s requirements?
MR. ALMEIDA: With regards to this particular project the merits of it again with regards to
the affordable... 100 affordable, you know, percent affordable project, the location of
the property in definitely a high-need area for affordable housing. We felt that, you
know, the merits justified and warranted the recommendation of the project for
consideration by this body. But we do again understand based on the fact that they
are 100 percent affordable they are eligible for credits and they will be receiving credits
per the law based on the
CHAIR HOKAMA: Who is Bach Corporation and what do they actually owe the County?
MR. ALMEIDA: They owe 25 percent is their requirement of the total number of units in the
project per 2.96.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What was their approval for? Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe the Bach Corporation, it was for a Kapalua, some
kindof...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, the Wailele, it’s called Wailele Ridge.
affordable credits that they had required.

Yeah, there’s 12

CHAIR HOKAMA: So why are you asking County money to help satisfy this requirement?
MR. UEOKA: The.. .if I may, Chair? Thank you. The homes built I
grant for the PV would go to satisfy the 12-unit requirement
and that was just part of the affordable housing agreement.
separate and aside from the satisfaction of the Wailele Project.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the value of satisfying this condition? You know what, we’re
going to defer this anyway, that’s okay. I’m not going to get the answers I need.
Ms. Cochran?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and that was my yellow highlights. You
touched upon what I was going to bring up. And, you know, it is unfortunate that
they’re holding the whole 100 percent affordable in a very needed area for this type of
project but, Chair, I share your same exact concerns that you just stated to this
Department in regards to the Bach Corporation and us funding the fulfillment for their
credits, their affordable workforce housing units and what have you. So I don’t
understand why we’re doing it like this. I don’t appreciate that we’re doing it this way
either. I know where the project is slated, the Wailele. My whole redemption center
got kicked out because of it so I have that issue in West Maui because of this
Bach Corporation too. So again it’s unfortunate that we’re sitting here questioning
this 100 percent affordable. I know, you know, Mr. Kihune and Ms. Duvauchelle
have, you know, a good place.. .have it in their heart to want to do the right thing but I
think this part that’s attached to all this doesn’t sit well for me either. So, Chair, I
share your concerns. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions for Mr. Kihune at this time? Okay, Members,
thank you. Mr. Kihune, thank you for your presence this morning. We appreciate it.
MR. KIHUNE: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Committee Members. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well bring up Aloha House $450,000. Mr. Cunningham?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee, you saw me earlier this
morning. I already presented testimony so if there are any questions Ill be happy to
try to answer them.
Ms. Reimann, any comments you have on

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
this request?

MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. No, the Department doesn’t have any comments and well
defer to Mr. Cunningham to address any questions this Committee has. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you for being here, Mr. Cunningham. At
the present time how many beds are residential transitional? Is it units or how you
defined it I’m not sure. Is it units or beds that you provide, the Aloha House?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: With Aloha House and our partner Malama Family Recovery Family
Center we have roughly around 60 beds
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And
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MR. CUNNINGHAM: --in about 5 or 6 different locations.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So with the purchase of this new residential acquisition it
will provide how many beds?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, concurrently it depends on what we’re able to purchase but we’re
hoping let’s say that we would be able to provide at least an additional eight beds,
maybe even more if we can get a house and ohana together which we have been
successful in doing in the past. And we have two, three, four situations like that
actually where, well, three situations where there’s a house and ohana together and so
each one qualifies as a single-family dwelling for purposes of the Code. So you can
have five, up to five unrelated people living there. We have a 48-bed residential
treatment facility up near Makawao and at one time the living stays or the residential
stays or the length of stay tended to be somewhere in the range of 75-plus days. And
over the last many years those number of days that have been approved by the
funding sources have decreased and decreased. And over the last couple of years the
shift; there’s been a big shift in funding from State to contracting with insurance
companies like HMSA and Ohana Care and UBH and so forth to pay for residential
treatment. So we’ve made a fairly successful transition for that. So out of all of our
48 beds, 8 of them are licensed crisis residential beds, 6 of ‘em are detox beds, and 34
I think that’s the remainder are substance abuse treatment. And because of the
shorter stays now people are like, once in a while we’re lucky to get 45 days out of an
insurance company but usually it’s 30 days and we’re finding, have found that it’s just
not, you know, sufficient amount of time. So having these clean and sober housing
beds enables us to provide a longer continuum of care so that the people who are in
treatment, and I know you understand that from your previous professional
background, but it enables us to work with the people longer. You heard the
gentleman speak this morning about how important that transition time was for him.
So we’d be increasing it by, you know, more than 10 percent of what we have
presently. And the waiting lists are, just no end to the need for that kind of housing.
And whenever people are completing treatment and you don’t have a place for
them... it’s also important to mention that the Drug Court, the Maui Drug Court which
usually has, well, presently has probably in the neighborhood of 70 people in the Drug
Court. They are pressing us all the time for clean and sober housing too. Fortunately
we have an arrangement with Maui Economic Opportunity where they had a dormitory
in Wailuku that we’re able to lease for them and manage and that’s been a very
successful endeavor as well. So, I hope that kind of addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes. Yes, it does.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And the reason I ask is I was trying to distinguish how
affordable housing comes into the substance abuse and I recognize also that
substance or drug use or substance use is some of the major chronic problems we
have for homelessness
--
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MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and the crisis that we’re facing today. So, I appreciate the
work that you do. One more question, Chair. So the 60 beds you talk about, is that
part of your... is that part of owned, you actually own the real estate that these homes
are at or are they spread out?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: In some situations we do but there might be restrictions on some of
them if public funds were used like CDBG for example to purchase some of those and
what we can do with ‘em. We frankly expect to use them in perpetuity for this purpose
as long as there’s a need for it. So, I’m not sure if I answered your question though.
COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO: Well, you said you have 60 beds throughout the island.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes, and some are rental situations.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Where the rental situations are very difficult, you know, for us to break
even on that, but we have a pretty comprehensive array of behavioral health services
that include, you know, services for the mentally ill and substance abusers, children,
adults, residential outpatient, foster care, and so forth, you know. So we never really
had to as an organization go into this area of clean and sober living. We did it because
of our commitment to it. There’s no money in it. It’s just because we want to improve
our outcomes and we know that if we can keep people engaged in treatment and in a
safe sober supported environment for a longer period of time it will improve our
outcomes.
COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO:
you.

Thank you.

Thank you for the work that you do.

Thank

MR. CUNNINGHAM: You’re welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions. I support this project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No questions. I also support the project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions but I would like to say that I am in strong support
of this project. Having dealt with this population I realize how important this is and
also I want to thank Aloha House for your commitment to helping people that can’t get
help anywhere else. Thank you.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: I’d like to also thank the County and the County Council for the
support they’ve given us over the years. It’s an incredible partnership so thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. No questions but want to say thank you,
Mr. Cunningham, for all the great work you do in this community. And I love seeing
your “x” on the perpetuity part. I think that’s really important. I’d love to, Chair, I’d
love to see just monies from this fund be put towards anything that’s going to be in
perpetuity so we don’t have to keep chasing that affordable housing issue. So thank
you very much for what you do. Thank you, Chair. In support.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Cunningham, for
being here and I echo the comments of my colleagues. I do have a question, how
many folks, if you were to get this grant and then this home, how many people would
be utilizing it per year let’s say? Somebody
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, you double the number of beds probably because people stay
there typically six months.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: About a six-month stay?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes, so if we’re able to get a facility that will accommodate 10 people
which some of ours do then we’d be serving 20 people a year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that’s different people each time.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, yes, I mean, you know, there is a misconception I think about the
fact that or the notion that everybody keeps going through treatment, you know,
there’s a redundancy there. It doesn’t really play out in the statistics. You have a
certain number of people who go through treatment and never go through treatment
again. You have a certain number of people who require multiple episodes of
treatment much the same way you do with any chronic condition, health condition.
And then you have, you know, people that it just doesn’t work for. They’re not there.
One of the things I like to say though is that when people ask how successful we are I
like to say that we’re 100 percent successful with people who are really motivated to
change.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah and that is what it takes. So this, Mr. Chair, this is
exactly the kind of thing the Affordable Housing Fund should be used for. As
-
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Ms. Cochran said it’s in perpetuity. It’s rental and it’s going help, one home is going to
help potentially 20 people a year and 20 different people a year. This is the exact
reason we... one of the exact reasons we have this fund. So I am very supportive of it
because we get, you know, to be, put it in terms of bang for your buck, we get a bang
for a buck on that one. A good bang for a buck. So I’m highly supportive of this.
Even though I know we put Fabmac through the ringer a little bit about they don’t
have a home yet, this is a proven model that theyre just getting ready, they need to
say okay we got it, we got the commitment of the funds now they can go find the
proper house. So very, very, very supportive of this one. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I appreciated you sharing the comments of the State’s Drug
Court. I just wish they would do less talking and more walking and putting up
resources to help you out.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: I couldn’t agree with you more about that. It’s a great source of
frustration to us. Frankly, you know, the Judiciary does need, they need the support,
these are our neighbors, you know, these people and we all understand that. But I
have to be careful what I say here but
CHAIR HOKAMA: Depends whose money you want.
want the County money?

Do you want the State money or you

MR. CUNNINGHAM: I want your money. But I think that the Judiciary does like to set high
standards for the services that they want to contract for but they don’t always... the
money doesn’t always follow let’s put it that way.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand. So one thing that is of concern to me ‘cause there’s other
entities that don’t do a good job is moving people through the funnel. So you haven’t
had many bad experiences of trying to get people through the transitioning to move
from your place to the next process of getting on to self-sufficiency and independence?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: It seems to work out. You know like the.. .1 wouldn’t say in 100 percent
of the cases that it works out but most of the time it does. You know by the time they
get there and they’ve got that six months to work on it we provide case management
services. We have some excellent case managers. And the State, the alcohol.. .I’m
saying something positive about the State and what it does, the Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Division a few years back did add in case management as a service that they
provide. So we’re able to use resources to hire staff to, you know, to help manage
these folks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.

-

57

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
February 16, 2016

MR. CUNNINGHAM: So, we’re helping them not only with.. .if it’s necessary with getting jobs,
you know, with... certainly with the housing and the other supports that they need in
place in order to be as successful as possible. Not to mention the, you know, the
12-step recovery process and other recovery support systems.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Yeah, I just bring it up because, you know, the Leg continues to
argue with the County what is our appropriate, not appropriate, what is our share of
revenues that we generate that the State tends to be overly possessive of
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes, sir, I was just listening this morning on the way to work on NPR
Billy Kenoi from the Big Island talk about that very same issue with regard to the
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: --what do you call, TAT.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, again, you know, my point is they can up the ante too and provide you
with some resources to assist your efforts, Mr. Cunningham. Okay, well, any other
questions for the gentleman? I think you did a good job in presenting your case so we
thank you very much for your presence.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Mahalo. Mahalo. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll bring up the last project for today, it’s a 2.5 million project by
Hale Mahaolu. Director, any comments on this one or Mr. Almeida?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. Unfortunately Roy Katsuda could not join us this
morning. He’s off island. However we do have Candace here from Hale Mahaolu who
will address any concerns or questions the Committee has on this project. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. WILKENSON: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Councilmembers. My name is
Candace Wilkenson and I’m the controller at Hale Mahaolu. Unfortunately Roy is out
of town today and so we apologize he couldn’t be here today. The project that we had
applied for is Hale Mahaolu Ewalu. Our first phase of our Ewalu campus will consist
of 39 units. There will be 36 1-bedroom units and 2 2-bedroom units, along with 1
manager’s unit. All of these units are designated for elderly affordable housing with
the exception of the manager’s unit. We have been working on this project for a few
years. Our project drawings are pretty much complete. Our permitting is in process
right now. We should be complete by the summer and at that time we would be ready
to begin site work. Are there any questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not at this time. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not for the young lady. I have a question for the Department.
Mr. Carroll, questions?
Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
representative from Hale Mahaolu?

Ms. Cochran, for our

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you for being here and thanks for all the
wonderful works you folks do for this community too. And this is the Kulamalu
--

MS. WILKENSON: Yes, Kulamalu.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Project? Okay, that’s all, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for being here. You
know we’ve.. .I’ve experienced this at the Kihei Hale Mahaolu, you guys do great work
and it’s affordable, it’s rental, and it’s for seniors. Is there.. .1 know you’re getting
Federal funds but is there any way we can work on trying to make this available first
to our Maui County residents? When I go, you know, when I get calls from the Kihei
one for their complaints that they have on the road and what not, it’s always from
somebody who just moved here to move into that home. And it kind of, you know
chops me a little bit ‘cause we have a lot of folks that are needing to retire that have
lived here for a long time, born and raised here maybe, and they are not in those
homes. How do you fix that? And I know it’s tough because you get Federal funds.
MS. WILKENSON: Thank you, Councilmember, for the question. Unfortunately because we
do receive Federal funding it is open to all US citizens. Especially at Ehiku we do have
rental subsidies by either HUD or Rural Development so those are available for any,
you know, any person qualified to live in those housing units. Unfortunately we can’t
discriminate and make them solely for Maui residents. Going forward with this project
we would most likely receive Federal funding as well and so we wouldn’t be able to
restrict the residents to Maui residents either.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I guess and maybe you can do it by a percent, you know,
we give.. .if we’re providing 50 percent of the funding then maybe 50 percent of the
homes can be restricted, that kind of thing. I don’t know. It’s just, it’s, it is
frustrating. You guys do a great job but when you get the calls from folks that are just
moved here to move into those it’s distressing a little bit.
MS. WILKENSON: Yeah, we do receive, you know, many applicants from the mainland. We
do receive many applicants from Maui County as well. We can take that back when
we’re drawing up our contracts with the Federal agencies to see if that’s something
they would allow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. You know since you have multiple funding and knowing your
organization, you keep track of your funds separately, right? It’s not just in one pot
and it’s just one mix of seven, eight different revenue sources. You keep each one
independent so you can respond back to your funding source how their specific money
was spent. Is that correct?
MS. WILKENSON: Yes, that’s correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So if we do it that way, I understand your comment about the government
and public benefit, what is public benefit. But if you had a private vendor or donor
and he said I’m willing to give you $1 million but my money is dependent upon that
only Maui people get the benefit. Can you do it?
MS. WILKENSON: We would most likely not
CHAIR HOKAMA: Where that money for that units it builds can be just for... done that way.
MS. WILKENSON: You know it maybe could be done. It may come down to something where
you would have to subdivide those units out from the project that receive the Federal
funding so you would build those four units separately and then try to somehow
subdivide the parcel and then build the remainder of the units with the federal
funding so that the monies don’t mix.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you please have a discussion with Mr. Katsuda

--

MS. WILKENSON: Sure.
--and see, one, if it’s doable and, two, how difficult it is if that is
CHAIR HOKAMA:
something we would like to pursue.
MS. WILKENSON: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, you know, just something for us to consider ‘cause of Mr. Couch’s
comments and concerns.
MS. WILKENSON: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. WILKENSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I was just trying to mullet around what you’re asking of
Hale Mahaolu and, yeah, that would be a wonderful thing if we could do it that way.
I’m thankful that the Hale Mahaolu on Lahainaluna Road mostly I believe a lot of
-
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Lahaina residents there. I haven’t heard the same issues that South Maui, Mr. Couch
has brought up. So thank you for the work in Lahaina in particular that I can relate
to, Chair. So but if there’s something, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and that’s why we’re just going to have her ask Roy, have a
discussion, you know, that that’s something brought up in the Committee.
MS. WILKENSON: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, very good. Thank you. No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Guzman, any questions for the lady? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else has any other questions for our resource person? If
not, we know the history of this entity, their track record. They’ve done multiple
projects on... throughout the County so if you have questions forward it to the Chair
and we’ll make sure those questions get sent to the appropriate parties. Thank you
very much for being patient and waiting. Even though your time was shorter, that’s a
better thing than being long up there.
MR. WILKENSON: Thank you. And thank you for all of your support of Hale Mahaolu. We
appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much. Director, anything else before we finish up this item
for today?
MS. REIMANN: No, nothing else. Thank you. Thank you all for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Almeida, anything else, sir?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. No, I concur with Director Reimann. Thank you very
much for taking this matter up and for your consideration. We appreciate it. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, any questions or requests before we adjourn regarding
need for information of any of the five proposals? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I guess I would like to ask the Department and,
you know, maybe they can answer me now. If... so I’m not sure exactly how much you
have in your affordable rental funds where these monies are coming from. If you were
not to use it for any of these processing that you went through with the applications,
how else would you apply it? How else would we utilize it? And I ask this because of
the concerns especially from the Chair on how we derive these monies and utilization
of these monies.
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MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Member Crivello, for that question. Two percent of Real Property
Tax is placed annually into the Affordable Housing Fund. I’m estimating somewhere
in the range of 5 million for fiscal year. We RfP about that amount or I get an
estimate from Director Baz on what we have before we start the process. If the plan
wasn’t approved and the funds were not awarded, the money would remain in the
Affordable Housing Fund for future RFPs, budget amendments and things of that
nature for affordable housing per Chapter 3.35. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Department.
Corporation Counsel one more question, one question?

Can I ask

CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. In regards to the concern that came up for the
West Maui Kaiaulu at Kaanapali project, on Page 4 we talked about the concerns
about the 12 units. You know first of all, I kind of feel quite good that they’re utilizing
the workforce, that changes that we went through and it’s becoming, make sense that
the people are utilizing the 2.96 with the amendments. So, I guess I would like to
have, if I may, Chair, some explanation as to (a) how that’s allowable with the said
units and the requirements of the 12 units and the agreement with the Bach
Corporation where that was brought to question. So you don’t have to explain it now
but if you can that would be fine, if that’s okay with the Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will forward a request to Corporation Counsel so Mr. Ueoka has time
to review the appropriate documents because I want this in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Especially about satisfying land use entitlements.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just a couple of questions. On the Hale Mahaolu application it refers
or it shows the 3.5 million that we have provided them out of the Housing Fund to
purchase the land. It shows that as tentative funds but hasn’t the land already been
purchased?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Chair White. Yes, the Affordable Housing
Fund did grant the money to Hale Mahaolu for the purchase of the land. It was done
in two parts. Initial 2 point or 2 million followed by the fiscal year 1 ‘/2 million to
comprise of the $3.5 million purchase price so that has been taken care of.
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And if the.. .what is your... I don’t know what your
Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
understanding is of the LIHTC funding but it’s far vaster than mine. If the funds from
Maui County that they’re requesting were not forthcoming, would they be able to apply
for a larger amount in LIHTC funds to make up the difference?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. We might want to call Candace back in case I, you know,
state something incorrectly but basically with regards to the application for
Hale Mahaolu for the Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, the award from Maui County if
granted would definitely help their scoring with regards to the leverage of funds for
them to be able to obtain the State tax credit funding. They’re also working with our
Section $ Department to setup a tenant-based voucher assistance program for their
projects so that will also assist them in scoring better to receive the State Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit award. Last year they went through the process, unfortunately
did not receive the award and they’ve been working diligently to try and improve in
areas of weakness to make sure they get that funding. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And the other question I’d like you to ask the Department to respond
to it at some point is I know that the housing study is just about to get going but I’m
just wondering from the previous housing study whether or not the need for housing
is greater among this population than it is among younger populations, homeless,
et cetera. And I don’t know that whether the housing study would provide that kind of
illumination but we’re putting a significant amount of money into this one project and
I’m just wondering if the need at that... in this bracket is warranted compared to
addressing the needs of affordable rentals for people that are in the workforce still.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can.. .we’ll forward that question to allow the Department sufficient
time to do their due diligence and get accurate information compiled so they can
respond to the request, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And just one last question was the HOME funds, those I believe are the
funds that we get once every four years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There’s a cycle. Mr. Almeida, every three years

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, every three years. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --every four years?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair.
Big Island.

Yes, on a three-year rotation with Kauai and the

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The Big Island. Okay.
MR. ALMEIDA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And so I guess the other question is whether those HOME funds have
been committed just to Hale Mahaolu for the 2015 period? And the reason I ask that
F-’
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is that my recollection is that during a presentation at HSAC it was told to us that the
Kauai HOME funds were split between two projects and the net result was that they
generated somewhere in the neighborhood of 105 units. Whereas the last time we
used HOME funds it went towards projects that would generate only about 56 units I
believe. So, again, are we being responsible by putting all the HOME funds in one
project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can ask that ‘cause I believe that was Ms. Maiava’s

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --presentation at the conference.
and allow them to respond.

So we can forward, well forward that

Yeah, and just for the record, Chair Crivello wanted to have
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
Ms. Maiava come over and provide her manao on this type of thing but I don’t know if
it was Mr. Ueoka or someone else but it was determined that if she made a
presentation to this body that it would render her ability to participate in future RfPs
at question. And I find that really hard to understand because we’ve had many
developers come up here and provide their manao in testimony and in direct
questioning and I just find it really hard to accept that someone with Ms. Maiava’s
talent is not able to provide this Committee or this, not this Committee, but the
Housing Committee with her perspectives on how to move forward with effective
affordable housing projects.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your comments is duly noted, Mr. White, and I will just say that I believe
Mr. Ueoka is like me. He takes a conservative approach. I think one way that we can
have Ms. Maiava either before this Committee or if more appropriate Ms. Crivello’s
Committee is maybe to expand the parameter of the subject so that it’s a little more
generic and broad but still can be, she can provide her specific comments regarding
affordability and how they’ve done projects in different counties as another way to
approach it. So I would say it still can be done, Chair Crivello, if you so wish and be
happy to work with you to make it happen.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. White, for that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else, Members, before we adjourn? If not, again part of
the affordability, Members, is going to happen in Budget under taxation ‘cause I’m
going to really push taxation as a key leverage in changing the attitude of
affordability’s especially when you see the numbers I’m getting from the University
about out-of-state ownership. We should be disturbed because, you know, the efforts
we doing is not curbing the growth in percent of ownership not of this island. So it’s
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something we need to work cooperatively with the Department and our private sector.
So being no further business, Members
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick, Chair. Thank you. And I’m looking at the
communication which was, which highlights the 2011 Hawaii Housing Planning Study
and in one portion about down-payment assistance I guess it’s been said via the
Department that they will continue to propose such a program and because theyre
seeing the lack of purchases happening. Of course we all know cost and what have
you, lack of down payment to even get started. So I was just wondering if Department
is still seeking to somehow bring such a program to us to look into?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there any further comment from this Department?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Almeida?
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Member Cochran. Yes, we are for the
upcoming Fiscal Year ‘17 Budget going to attempt to present a new form of the
First-Time Home Buyer’s Program for Council’s consideration. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
grant?

Okay and this is.. .will be in a form of a loan and not a

MR. ALMEIDA: The program will still be in the form of a grant with the same restrictions.
It’s a 15-year owner occupancy requirement and if you sell during any period of the
15 years, even if it’s 14’/2 years in you have to repay the entire subsidy that you
received. So those are the deed restrictions that go with this particular grant. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So again it doesn’t stay in perpetuity, after 15 you can sell it
at market.
MR. ALMEIDA: Correct it’s not in perpetuity based on its current form.
deed restriction.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Chair.

Okay.

It has a 15-year

Well, I guess well have further discussion on that,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we will.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much.
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, anything else, Members? Having none, this meeting is adjourned.

(gavel).
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

12:12 p.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Cathy Simmons
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